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ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

Franklin Electric Co., Inc. is an Indiana corpooatfounded in 1944 and incorporated in 1946 thaether with its subsidiaries, designs, manufasture
and distributes groundwater and fuel pumping systemmposed primarily of submersible motors, purefesitronic controls and related parts and
equipment. The Company’s business consists of éporting segments based on the principal end magteed: the Water Systems segment and the
Fueling Systems segment. The Company includesagzéd corporate expenses in an “Other” segmentdgather with Water and Fueling represent
the Company. Except where the context otherwiggires, “Franklin Electric” or the “Company”, shadifer to Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries.

The Company’s products are sold worldwide. The @Gamy’s products are sold by its employee saleefard independent manufacturing
representatives. The Company offers normal antbmegy trade terms to its customers, no signifigeant of which is of an extended nature. Special
inventory requirements are not necessary, and mgstmerchandise return rights do not extend beyamchal warranty provisions.

The market for the Company’s products is highly petitive and includes diversified accounts by sind type. The Company’s Water Systems and
Fueling Systems products and related equipmergaddeto specialty distributors and some originalipment manufacturers (“OEMs”), as well as
industrial and petroleum equipment distributors arajor oil and utility companies.

Business Segments and Products
Segment and geographic information set forth uhige 17, “Segment and Geographic Information, hi® ¢onsolidated financial statements is
incorporated herein by reference.

Water Systems Segment

Water Systems is a global leader in the produdtimh marketing of groundwater pumping systems aadéghnical leader in submersible motors,
pumps, drives, electronic controls, and monitodegices. The Water Systems segment designs, mamégaand sells motors, pumps, electronic
controls and related parts and equipment priméoilyuse in groundwater and wastewater applicatéiont through the Fueling Segment, for fuel transfer
applications.

Water Systems motors and pumps are used princifealjyumping fresh water and wastewater in a wariétresidential, agricultural and industrial
applications. Water Systems also manufacturesretgc drives and controls for the motors which ttohfunctionality and provide protection from
various hazards, such as electric surges, oveirigeatr dry wells and tanks.

Beginning in 2004, the Company changed its NortheAoan business model to sell Water Systems prediictctly to wholesale

distributors. Previously, the Company sold its 8¥&ystems products primarily to pump OEMs (ilee, Company was primarily a supplier of
submersible motors and controls to the OEMs) wiea tte-sold the Water Systems products, usually auedbwith pumps and related products, to the
wholesale distributors. To facilitate this traisit the Company acquired several pump manufactuharing and since 2004 (most significantly, JBD
Pump Company in 2004 and Little Giant Pump Comparg006). As of the end of fiscal year 2004, apprately 42 percent of the Company’s
consolidated sales were attributable to two custentmth of which were pump OEMs. Customer sategentration declined from 2004 to 2006, and
since 2007, no single customer accounted for niae 10 percent of the Company’s consolidated sales.

The Company further expanded its global market patien by acquisitions in developing regions (Pugrpnds (Pty) Limited in South Africa in 2007
and Industrias Schneider SA in Brazil in 2008)/eSén developing regions increased more than 400emt in total from 2002 to 2010 and represent
about 40 percent of Water Systems sales in 200uA60 percent of this growth was organic and a88upercent was from acquisitions.

Water Systems products are sold in highly competitharkets. Water Systems competes in each @frgetied markets based on product design, quality
of products and services, performance, availabiitd price. The




Company’s principal competitors in the specialtytavaoroducts industry are Grundfos Management R&tair, Inc., and ITT Corporation.

2010 Water Systems research and development expexiivere primarily related to the following adies:
« SubDrive® InLine 1100 Booster Pump
« Volt-X Motor — Dual Voltage motor configurable bexen 230V and 460V
« MH Booster — Multi-Stage Horizontal Booster
« Convertible VersaJet — Convertible jet pump witteinhangeable faceplates for retrofit installations
« STS 6” Sub Turbine — Sand resistant submersiblértampump
« SubDrive2W — Constant pressure controller for suisibke 2-wire pumps
« New aluminum engine driven pump product |
« New pumping system for extracting natural gas fowal seam
« New solar power groundwater pumping sys

Fueling Systems Segment

Fueling Systems is a global leader in the prodaciiod marketing of fuel pumping systems, fuel ciomi@nt systems, and monitoring and control
systems. This segment designs, manufactures dsgsebps, pipe, sumps, fittings, vapor recovery ponents, electronic controls, monitoring devices
and related parts and equipment primarily for mssubmersible fueling system applications.

The Company has expanded its product offeringsutiftanternal development and acquisitions. Thetmotable acquisition was Healy Systems, In
2006 whose products included fueling dispenserleezznd complete vapor recovery systems. The vaggorvery systems and components enjoyed
particular success in California from late 2002#&oly 2009, due to California Air Resource Boardifieation requirements for conversion of fuel
dispensing stations to certified dispensers suchase of Healy Systems. This conversion was largempleted in 2009. All products, including vapo
recovery systems, are sold internationally.

During the third quarter of 2010, the Company amliPetroTechnik Limited and its subsidiaries (fBtetchnik”), a designer and supplier of
underground flexible pipe systems and manufaciirabove and below ground fuel storage systemgaggbure vessels in England. Petrotechnik’s
systems provide the Company access to a worldwideomer base and growth territories. Petrotechrsliles were not material as a component of the
Company’s consolidated sales for 2010.

Fueling Systems products are sold in highly contigetmarkets. Fueling Systems competes in eacts ¢diigeted markets based on product design,
quality of products and services, performance atbdity and price. The Company’s principal compastin the petroleum equipment industry are
Danaher Corporation and Dover Corporation.

2010 Fueling Systems research and development ditpess were primarily related to the following iaittes:
« Several enhancements to the FMS T5 Series tankegemigtrols including a new thermal printer, statédtline leak detection scheme
enhancements to the-tank leak detection syste
« Ongoing work on a new line of conventional and vajgeovery nozzles and related equipment for usetémnational markets
« Expansion of the product offering with productsigesd specifically for use with biofuels such aSE&d biodiesel
» Development of a new fusion welded piping system
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Research and Development
The Company incurred research and development sgpEifollows:

(In millions) 2010 2009 2008
Research and development expe $ 75 % 6 $ 6.8

These expenses were for activities related to éveldpment of new products, improvement of exispngducts and manufacturing methods, and other
applied research and development.

The Company owns a number of patents, trademaxk$icenses. In the aggregate, these patents anatefrial importance to the operation of the
business; however, the Company believes that #gsadipns are not dependent on any single pategyiooip of patents.

Raw Materials

The principal raw materials used in the manufactditne Company'’s products are coil and bar sttainless steel, copper wire, and aluminum ingot.
Major components are capacitors, motor protecforgings, gray iron castings and bearings. Moghege raw materials are available from multiple
sources in the United States and world marketthdropinion of management, no single supply soisgrcetical to the Company’s business. Availability
of fuel and energy is adequate to satisfy curradtojected overall operations unless interruptedovernment direction or allocation.

Employees
The Company employed approximately 3,470 persotigeagnd of 2010.

Backlog
The dollar amount of backlog by segment was asvid|

February 18, February 18,

(In millions) 2011 2010

Water System $ 41€¢ $ 35.€

Fueling Systems 10.€ 2.7
$ 52t $ 38.E

The backlog is composed of written orders at prasjgstable on a price-at-the-time-of-shipment ©&si products, primarily standard catalog itemi. A
backlog orders are expected to be filled in fil1l. The Company’s sales in the first quartegareerally less than its sales in other quarteestdu
generally lower construction activity during tharipd in the northern hemisphere. Beyond thatetiieno seasonal pattern to the backlog and the
backlog has not proven to be a significant indicafduture sales.

Environmental Matters

The Company believes that it is in compliance withapplicable federal, state and local laws comicgr the discharge of material into the environment
or otherwise relating to the protection of the eoniment. The Company has not experienced any rabtasts in connection with environmental
compliance, and, subject to the disclosure in I8erhegal Proceedings, does not believe that suniptiance will have any material adverse effect upon
the financial position, results of operation, clietvs, or competitive position of the Company.

Available Information

The Company'’s website addresswsw.franklin-electric.com The Company makes available free of charge dhrough its website its annual repori
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curmapiorts on Form 8-K, and all amendments to thogerts, as soon as reasonably practicable after
such material is electronically filed with or fushied to the Securities and Exchange Commissionitidddlly, the Company’s website includes the
Company’s corporate governance guidelines, its oammittee charters, and the Company’s code ahbss conduct and ethics. Information
contained on the Company’s website is not parhisfannual report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
The following describes the principal risks affagtthe Company and its business. Additional raks uncertainties, not presently known to the
Company or currently deemed immaterial, could neghtimpact the Company’s results of operationsimancial condition in the future.

The Company’s acquisition strategy entails expeniséggration risks, and other risks that could affethe Company’s earnings and financial

condition. One of the Company’s continuing strategies is toéase revenues and expand market share througisitiogs that will provide
complementary Water and Fueling Systems produlit® Company spends significant time and effort egpag existing businesses through identify
pursuing, completing, and integrating acquisitiomsich generate expense whether or not the aciuisiare actually completed. Competition for
acquisition candidates may limit the number of apyaties and may result in higher acquisition psc There is uncertainty related to successfully
acquiring, integrating and profitably managing diddial businesses without substantial costs, dedaygher problems. There can also be no assurance
that acquired companies will achieve revenues tatgfity or cash flows that justify the investméntthem. Failure to manage or mitigate thesesrisk
could adversely affect the Company’s results ofrafens and financial condition.

The Company'’s products are sold in highly compefitimarkets, by numerous competitors whose actiomdd negatively impact sales volume,

pricing and profitability. The Company is a global leader in the producgiod marketing of groundwater and fuel pumping systeEnd user demar
distribution relationships, industry consolidatiorew product capabilities of the Company’s compedibr new competitors, and many other factors
contribute to a highly competitive environment. dittbnally, some of the Company’s competitors haubstantially greater financial resources than the
Company. Although the Company believes that coesty of product quality, timeliness of delivergpgice, and continued product innovation, as well
as price, are principal factors considered by custs in selecting suppliers, competitive factoesvprusly described may lead to declines in salés or
the prices of all the Company’s products which dduve an adverse impact on its results of operaémd financial condition.

Reduced housing starts adversely affect demandier Compan’s products, thereby reducing revenues and earning@emand for certain Company
products is affected by housing starts. Contimuatif the decline in housing starts over the lest years or a continuation or deepening of the ig¢ne
slowdown in the United States or other economighéninternational markets the Company serves caddce demand and adversely impact gross
margins and operating results.

Increases in the prices of raw materials, comporerfinished goods and other commaodities could adety affect operations The Company
purchases most of the raw materials for its praglaotthe open market and relies on third partieghi® sourcing of certain finished goods. Accogtim
the cost of its products may be affected by chaimg#dse market price of raw materials, sourced congmts, or finished goods. Natural gas and
electricity prices have historically been volatilehe Company does not generally engage in comgbdiging for raw materials. Significant increases
in the prices of commodities, sourced componeirished goods, or other commaodities could causdumrioprices to increase, which may reduce
demand for products or make the Company more stiblefo competition. Furthermore, in the everg @ompany is unable to pass along increases in
operating costs to its customers, margins andtpiofity may be adversely affected.

The Company is exposed to political, economic atigen risks that arise from operating a multinatiomdusiness. The Company has significant
operations outside the United States, includingopey South Africa, Brazil, Mexico and China. Ferttthe Company obtains raw materials and finit
goods from foreign suppliers. Accordingly, the Gmany'’s business is subject to political, econoraig other risks that are inherent in operating a
multinational business. These risks include, betrot limited to, the following:

« Difficulty in enforcing agreements and collectiregeivables through foreign legal systems

« Trade protection measures and import or expoméicey requirements

« Imposition of tariffs, exchange controls or othestrictions

« Difficulty in staffing and managing widespread ogt@wns and the application of foreign labor regolas
« Compliance with foreign laws and regulations

« Changes in general economic and political conditioncountries where the Company operates




Additionally, the Company’s operations outside theted States could be negatively impacted by chkaiig treaties, agreements, policies and laws
implemented by the United States.

If the Company does not anticipate and effectivejnage these risks, these factors may have a alatdvierse impact on its international operatians o
on the business as a whole.

Transferring operations of the Company to low casgions may not result in the intended cost bengfitThe Company is continuing its rationalizat

of manufacturing capacity between all existing nfaoturing facilities and the manufacturing compkeielow cost regions such as Mexico, the Czech
Republic and China. To implement this strategg, @mmpany must complete the transfer of assetinéeltbctual property between operations. Each of
these transfers involves the risk of disruptiotht® Company’s manufacturing capability, supply oheaid, ultimately, to the Company’s ability to
service customers and generate revenues and profits

The Company has significant investments in foreigntities and has significant sales and purchasedaneign denominated currencies creating
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctigats.

The Company has significant investments outsideJthieed States, including Europe, South Africa, &ltdMexico and China. Further, the Company
has sales and makes purchases of raw materiafnéited goods in foreign denominated currencikscordingly, the Company has exposure to
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rateatied to the US dollar. Foreign currency excharage risk is reduced through several means:
maintenance of local production facilities in tharkets served, invoicing of customers in the sanmeeacy as the source of the products, prompt
settlement of inter-company balances utilizing@bgl netting system and limited use of foreign ency denominated debt. To the extent that these
mitigating strategies are not successful, foreigmency rate fluctuations can have a material esfvampact on its international operations or on the
business as a whole.

Delays in introducing new products or the inabilitp achieve or maintain market acceptance with éxig or new products may cause the Comp’s
revenues to decreaseThe industries to which the Company belongs hegacterized by intense competition, changes inused requirements, and
evolving product offerings and introductions. T®@mpany believes future success will depend, ity parthe ability to anticipate and adapt to these
factors and offer, on a timely basis, products thaet customer demands. Failure to develop nevireodative products or to enhance existing
products could result in the loss of existing cosos to competitors or the inability to attract newsiness, either of which may adversely affect the
Company’s revenues.

Certain Company products are subject to regulatiand government performance requirements in addititmthe warranties provided by the
Company. The Company’s product lines have expanded sigmifly and certain products are subject to govemtmegulations and standards for
manufacture, assembly, and performance in additidhe warranties provided by the Company. The gamy’s failure to meet all such standards or
perform in accordance with warranties could resusiignificant warranty or repair costs, lost saes profits, damage to the Company’s reputatiod, a
fines or penalties from Governmental organizationke claims made by the California Air Resourcear and certain local air districts in California,
described in ltem R-egal Proceedings, are examples of the issues@maarise under these laws and regulations. Ckanghese standards may req
the Company to modify its business objectives acdr additional costs to comply.

The growth of municipal water systems and ncreased government restrictions on groundwater gaing could reduce demand for private water
wells and the Company’s products, thereby reducingevenues and earnings. Demand for certain Company products is affectedubogl
communities shifting from private and individual teawell systems to city or municipal water systeMany economic and other factors outside the
Company’s control, including Federal and State laipns on water quality, tax credits and incergiveould impact the demand for private and
individual water wells. A decline in private andlimidual water well systems in the United Statesthier economies in the international markets the
Company serves could reduce demand for the Compamgtiucts and adversely impact sales, gross nsaagith operating results.




Demand for Fueling Systems products is impactedelnyironmental legislation which may cause significgincreases in product demand and may
followed by significantly reduced demand after miegt compliance requirements Environmental legislation related to air quabiyd fueling
containment may create demand for certain Fuelirgge®ns products which must be supplied in a redtishort time frame to meet the governmental
mandate. During this period of increased demaadibmpany’s revenues and profitability could inegeaignificantly. The Company is at risk of not
having capacity to meet demand or cost overrundalireefficiencies during ramp up to the higherduotion levels. After the Company’s customers
have met the compliance requirements, the Compaay&nues and profitability may decrease signitilyaars the demand for certain products declines
substantially. The Company is at risk of not redggroduction costs in relation to the decreasadahd as well as reduced revenues adversely
impacting gross margins and operating results.

Changes in tax legislation regarding our foreign g@ngs could materially affect our future results.

Since the Company operates in different countnigsis subject to taxation in different jurisdictiyrihe Company’s future effective tax rates codd b
impacted by changes in such countries’ tax lawheir interpretations. Both domestic and intewrai tax laws are subject to change as a result of
changes in fiscal policy, changes in legislatiomgletion of regulation and court rulings. The d@pation of these tax laws and related regulatisns i
subject to legal and factual interpretation, judgtend uncertainty. Proposed changes to the bt&niational tax laws would limit U.S. deductioos f
expenses related to un-repatriated foreign-somaame and modify the U.S. foreign tax credit andetk-the-box” rules. The Company cannot predict
whether these proposals will be enacted into lawlat, if any, changes may be made to such propgsalr to their being enacted into law. If theSU.
tax laws change in a manner that increases the @ayigptax obligation, it could result in a matealverse impact on the Company’s results of
operations and financial condition.

Additional Risks to the Compan
The Company is subject to various risks in the redreourse of business. Exhibit 99.1 sets forthsrimkd other factors that may affect future results,
including those identified above, and is incorpedaterein by reference.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
The Company maintains its principal executive @ién Bluffton, Indiana (leased).

Manufacturing plants or primary distribution cester the Water Systems segment are located in &liss{teased), Brazil (owned), Canada (leased),
China (leased), The Czech Republic (owned), Gernjawyped), Italy (leased), Japan (leased), Mexieengd), Republic of Botswana (leased), South
Africa (owned), and the United States. Within tated States, significant manufacturing and priyndistribution facilities are located in Little Rac
Arkansas (leased), Wilburton, Oklahoma (owned); @kthhoma City, Oklahoma (owned).

Manufacturing plants or primary distribution cemstar the Fueling Systems segment are located ifotloaving countries: China (leased), England
(leased), Germany (owned), South Africa (owned), e United States. Within the United Statesgaificant manufacturing facility is located in
Madison, Wisconsin (leased).

The Company also maintains leased warehouse fesiiit Bluffton, Indiana; Fresno, California; SamfpFlorida; Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada; and
Bolton, Ontario, Canada.

In the Company’s opinion, its facilities are suleafor their intended use, adequate for the Comisamnysiness needs, and in good condition.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In August 2010, the California Air Resources Bo@@ARB”) filed a civil complaint in the Los AngeleSuperior Court against the Company and
Franklin Fueling Systems, Inc. (a wholly-owned sdiasy of the Company). The complaint relates thied-party-supplied component part of the
Company’s Healy 900 Series nozzle, which is pathefCompany’s Enhanced Vapor Recovery (“‘EVR”) 8yt installed in California gasoline filling
stations. This part, a diaphragm, was the sulgjeatretrofit during the first half of 2008. AsgtllCompany has previously reported, in October 2008
CARB issued a Notice of Violation to the Comparniggihg that the circumstances leading to the ri¢jpobgram violated California statutes and
regulations. The Company and CARB have workedesBi08 to resolve the diaphragm matter without tcaction, but were unable to reach agreen

The claims in the complainmirror those that CARB presented to the ComparthénNotice of Violation, and include claims tha¢ tBompany
negligently and intentionally sold nozzles with adified diaphragm without required CARB certificati The Company believes that, throughout the
period to which the complaint relates, it acteduihcooperation with CARB and in the best intesegst CARB’s vapor emissions control

program. Although the complaint seeks penaltiest déast $25 million, it is the Company’s positttiat there is no reasonable basis for penalti¢isiof
amount.

In addition, as the Company has previously repottel Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Managetrgistrict (“SMAQMD”) issued a Notice of
Violation to the Company concerning the diaphragatter in March 2008. Discussions with that agesioyut the circumstances leading to the retrofit
in its jurisdiction and the resolution of the aggsaoncerns did not result in agreement, and imeévicber 2010 SMAQMD filed a civil complaint in the
Sacramento Superior Court, mirroring the claimsughd by CARB with respect to the diaphragm issug @ro alleging violation of SMAQMD

rules. SMAQMD’s suit asks for at least $5 millionpenalties for the violations claimed in its gdiction.

In July 2010, the Company entered into a tollingeagnent with the South Coast Air Quality Manageni#istrict (‘SCAQMD”) and began discussions
with that agency about the circumstances leadinggaetrofit in its jurisdiction and the resolutiof the agency’s concerns. Those discussionaatid
result in agreement and in December 2010, SCAQNHI f civil complaint against the Company in Logyales Superior Court. The complaint alleges
violations of California statutes and regulatiosisjilar to the complaint filed by CARB, as well@slation of SCAQMD rules, and seeks penaltiestof a
least $12.5 million. The SCAQMD complaint does ald¢ge an intentional violation of any statutderwr regulation.

The Company believes that there is no reasonabis fia the amount of penalties claimed in the SMAand SCAQMD suits. The Company has
answered the SMAQMD and SCAQMD complaints, as aglthe CARB complaint, denying liability and asisgyaffirmative defenses.

Neither CARF's filing of its suit nor the air district suits % any effect on CARB's certification of the CompanEVR System or any other products of
the Company or its subsidiaries, and so do notfare with continuing sales. CARB has never défiedtthe Company’s EVR System and does not
propose to do so now.

The Company remains willing to discuss these matad work toward resolving them. The Company oapredict the ultimate outcome of
discussions to resolve these matters or any praugedith respect to them. Penalties awardedén@ARB or any air district proceedings or payments
resulting from a settlement of these matters, déipgnon the amount, could have a material effedhenCompany’s results of operations.

The Company acquired the Healy product line in &ajper 2006 when it purchased Healy Systems, Irecpréviously reported, the Company withheld
a portion of the purchase price and the earn-opnpats otherwise due to James Healy (the prinégpaier owner of Healy Systems) against its claim
for indemnification with respect to the diaphragratter. Mr. Healy sued the Company in U.S. Dist@ourt in New Hampshire, claiming these

funds. In December 2010, the Court ruled, afiat,tthat the Company was not entitled to indeneaifion for the diaphragm matter. The Court also
ruled that Mr. Healy is entitled to prejudgmenteirst on certain of the withheld funds.
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Without prejudicing the Company’s right to appésa Court’s rulings (which have not yet been reduogddgment), the Company released the funds
withheld on account of the diaphragm matter in 3ayn2011, and in December 2010 recognized a ctadrje.2 million reflecting attorneys’ fees for
Mr. Healy, on which the Court has not yet ruled] anejudgment interest. The Company is discussitiy Mr. Healy a final resolution of their disput:
including Mr. Healy’s indemnification obligationsitiv respect to a separate patent matter, and ttiephave agreed to defer further action in theeca
for a time to allow those discussions to proceed.

On July 31, 2009, Sta-Rite Industries, LLC and Rieninc. filed an action against the Company i thS. District Court for the Northern District of
Ohio, alleging breach of the parties’ 2004 Setti@nAgreement and tortious interference with corittesed on the Company's pricing of submersible
electric products and seeking damages in excessmmillion for each claimant. The Company hasietiability, is defending the case vigorously,

and has filed a counterclaim alleging Sta-Rite Badtair's breach of the same Settlement Agreenizistovery has concluded and each side has filed a
motion for summary judgment, seeking dismissahefdther's claims. Those motions are currentlylipen The Company cannot predict the ultimate
outcome of this litigation, and any settlement djudication of this matter, depending on the ampootild have a material effect on the Company’s
results of operations.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Current executive officers of the Company, theeggurrent position, and business experience glatiteast the past five years as of January 11 20
follows:

Period Holding

Name Age Position Helc Position
R. Scott Trumbul 62 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi 200:-presen
Gregg C. 52 Senior Vice President and President Fueling atetiational Water Group 2005-present
Sengstacl
Robert J. Ston 46 Senior Vice President and President, Americas Y\&stems Grou 2007-presen
Vice President of Sales, Marketing, and Engineenligstern 2004-2007
Hemisphere Water Syste
Daniel J. Crost 62 Vice President, Global Water Product Sug 200¢-presen
Vice President and Director, North American Operad 200:-2009
Delancey W. 45 Vice President, Franklin Electric and PresidentCt8rada Business Unit 2009-present
Davis
Vice President and Business Unit Manager, US/Caléai@r System 200¢-2009
Vice President and Director of Sales, Western Hphese Water Systen 200%-2008
John J. Haine 47 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Searng 200¢-presen
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, HSBGto Finance, a provider of consumer automobile 2004-2008
financing
Thomas J. Strup 57 Vice President, Global Human Resour 201(-presen
Vice President, Franklin Electric and Presidentm$sioner and Specialty Markets Business | 200¢-2010
Vice President, Franklin Electric and President{&/dransfer Systen 200¢&-2009
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretanyd President Water Transfer 2005-2008
System
Steven W. 51 Vice President, Global Water Systems Engineering 2010 - present
Aikman
Chief Engineer — Fuel Handling Products, Delphiggwoation, a global supplier for the automotive, 2003 - 2010

computing, communications, energy, and consumesasceies marke
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All executive officers are elected annually by Beard of Directors at the Board meeting held injonation with the annual meeting of shareowners.
All executive officers hold office until their suessors are duly elected or until their death, restign, or removal by the Board.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STGGHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

The number of shareowners of record as of Febr24rg011 was 1,061. The Company's stock is tradedASDAQ Global Select Market: Symbol
FELE.

Dividends paid and the price range per common sh&rpioted by the NASDAQ Global Select Market foi@ and 2009 were as follows:

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE PRICE PER SHARI
2010 2009 2010 2009
Low High Low High
1st Quarte $ A28 % A28 $ 249 % 309t % 17.12  $ 30.5¢
2nd Quarte $ 12 8 A28 $ 27.0¢ % 36.5¢ $ 215 $ 27.1¢
3rd Quartel $ A2 8 A28 $ 276z $ 344C % 228C $ 34.5(
4th Quarte! $ 128 A28 $ 324: % 41.7¢  $ 26.61 $ 29.9¢

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities:

The following table shows certain information reldto the Company’s repurchases of common stocthéthree months ended January 1, 2011, under
the Company’s stock repurchase program. Theseshare purchased in a privately negotiated traiosacThe purchase price for the shares was
determined pursuant to the Stock Redemption Agreeaeethe average of the highest and lowest clgsilcg over the prior 20 trading days.

Total numbe
of share Maximum
purchased ¢ numbe
part o of shares thi
publicly may
Total number ¢ Average pric announce yet be
Period shares purchas paid per shai plar purchase
Oct. 3—- Nov. 6 - - - 1,719,501
Nov. 7- Dec. 4 - - - 1,719,501
Dec.5-Jan. 1 $ 68,58" $ 36.4¢ 68,587 1,650,91.
Total $ 68,58" $ 36.4¢ 68,587 1,650,91.
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares our cumulative totatkholder return (Common Stock price appreciafitus dividends, on a reinvested basis) over the
last five fiscal years with the Palisades U.S. Whtdex and the Russell

2000 Index. The Company chose to start using #isdtles U.S. Water Index in 2010 as it was conséa more relevant index than the previously
used S&P 500 Index.

—e—Franklin Electric —m— Palisades U.S. Water Index —a— Russell 2000
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Hypothetical $100 invested on January 1, 2006 @anKlin Electric Common Stock, Palisades U.S. Whtdex and Russell 2000 Index, assuming
reinvestment of dividends.

FELE $ 10C $ 13C $ 98 $ 72 $ 75 $ 101
Palisades U.S. Wat $ 10C $ 121 $ 14t $ 10C $ 117  $ 132
Russell 200( $ 10C $ 11€ $ 11€ $ 77 $ 98 $ 124
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following selected financial data should bedriaconjunction with the Company’s consolidatathficial statements. The information set forth
below is not necessarily indicative of future opierss.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (a)

(In thousands, except per share amounts and yatios 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Operations (b) (c) (d) (e) 4]
Net sale: $ 713,79: $ 625,99. $ 745,627 $ 602,02! $ 557,94¢
Gross profil 230,30( 187,83¢ 226,92! 172,82( 191,55
Interest expens 9,692 9,54¢ 10,96¢ 8,14 3,37:
Income tax expens 15,10¢ 12,16¢ 22,92t 15,43« 30,67:
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Cloc. 38,96¢ 25,98¢ 44 11: 28,68: 56,76:
Depreciation and amortizatit 24,04( 25,38¢ 24,16¢ 20,35¢ 17,98¢
Capital expenditure 12,77¢ 13,88¢ 26,86( 28,797 23,71
Balance shee
Working capital (g $ 261,14¢ $ 228,45( $ 236,24¢ $ 218,83( $ 123,83:
Property, plant and equipment, 143,07¢ 147,17 144,53t 134,93: 115,97¢
Total asset 779,91: 718,29t 694,05 662,23 526,92!
Long-term debt 151,24! 151,24 185,52¢ 151,28 51,04
Shareowne’ equity 417,84¢ 388,17: 348,93 378,54 345,83:
Other data
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Cinc., to
sales 5.5% 4.2% 5.9% 4.8% 10.2%
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Coc., to
average total asse 5.2% 3.7% 6.5% 4.8% 12.5%
Current ratio (h 34 3.7 3.2 3.4 2.3
Number of common shares outstanc 23,257 23,12¢ 23,01¢ 23,09: 23,00¢
Per share
Market price rang
High $ 41.7¢  $ 3450 $ 545t $ 525t $ 62.9¢
Low $ 249: % 1712 $ 23.7¢ % 36.00 $ 38.7(
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Ca¢l, per
weighte-average common sha $ 168 $ 118 % 192 % 122 % 2.4¢
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Cog., per
weighte-average common share, assuming dilu ~ $ 166 $ 1.1z $ 19C $ 1.2z $ 2.4z
Book value (i 17.77 16.6 15.02 16.12 14.8¢
Dividends per common she $ 052 $ 05 $ 05 $ 0.47 $ 0.42

(a) The five year financial presentation excludesgales and earnings of the Engineered Motor Rtsdivision (EMPD) which was sold during the
fourth quarter of 2006.

(b) Includes the results of operations of the Comyfsawholly owned subsidiary PetroTechnik Limiteihce its acquisition in the third quarter of 2010.
(c) Includes the results of operations of the Camyfsa75% owned subsidiary, Vertical S.p.A. acquiiedthe first quarter of 2009.

(d) Includes the results of operations of the Caomyfsawholly-owned subsidiaries, Industrias Schneigla, and Western Pump LLC, since their
acquisitions in the first and second quarter of®08spectively.

(e) Includes the results of operations of the Camgfgawholly-owned subsidiaries, Pump Brands (Ptiyhited and the pump division of Monarch
Industries Limited, since their acquisitions in gexond and third quarters of 2007, respectively.

(f) Includes the results of operations of the Comypawholly-owned subsidiaries, Little Giant Pumpr@pany and Healy Systems, Inc., since their
acquisition in the second and third quarters of&208spectively.

(9) Working capital = Current assets minus Curtiadilities.

(h) Current ratio = Current assets divided by Cuirfiabilities.

(i) Book value = Shareowners’ equity divided by glgied average common shares, assuming full dilution
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2010 // 2009

OVERVIEW

Sales and earnings for 2010 were up from last y2@fi0 sales increased 14 percent compared tos2089 and 2010 diluted earnings per share
increased 48 percent. Earnings for the year hasreased primarily due to the increased revenudesedaging of fixed manufacturing costs on the
higher sales. The Company generated $94.6 mificash from operations during 2010 comparedLt®$ million in 2009 and ended 2010 with
about $140 million of cash and equivalents comp#seabout $87 million at year-end 2009. Inventags $126.0 million at year end 2010, $8.4 million
or 6 percent less than at year end 2008September of 2010, Franklin Fueling Systemsiaied all of the outstanding stock of PetroTecHriikited for
about $12.9 million. The Company purchased appnately $6.9 million, or about 226 thousand shasé§ompany stock pursuant to its authorized
stock repurchase program during 2010. The Compadynb outstanding balance on its revolving deb¢ement at year-end 2010 or 2009.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales
2010 2009 2010 v 200¢
Net Sales
Water System $ 583.2 $ 504.¢ $ 78.E
Fueling System $ 1308 $ 1212 $ 9.2
Other $ - % - $ -
Consolidated $ 713.¢ % 626.( $ 87.¢

Net sales for 2010 were $713.8 million, an increzs®37.8 million or about 14 percent compared@02sales of $626.0 million. Sales reve;
increased by $11.7 million or about 2 percent it®6ue to foreign exchange. The incremental impasales from businesses acquired during 201(
$11.3 million. The sales change for 2010, excludinguisitions and foreign exchange, was an increb$64.8 million or about 10 percent.

Net Sale-Water Systems

Water Systems sales worldwide were $583.3 millign$78.5 million or about 16 percent for 2010 coregeto 2009. Water Systems revenues repr
about 80 percent of the Company’s total sales.oflhe Water Systems sales growth was organicn@d®in selling price increased net sales by $13.0
million or about 2.5 percent. Sales revenue iregday $12.2 million or about 2 percent in 2010 wufreign currency translation.

Water Systems sales in the U.S. and Canada reprdsaut half of global Water Systems sales and dmgw/7 percent in 2010 versus 2009. In the U.S.
and Canada, sales of groundwater pumping systemesdilential applications increased by about 22qr@ as a result of market share gains. Sales of
large groundwater pumping systems for industrial agricultural applications in the U.S. and Canadiwrket grew by about 15 percent during the
and appear to be primarily from farm spending desgilatively wet weather in several important Waricultural regions. Internationally, Water
Systems sales in the developing markets of LatireAea, Asia Pacific and Southern Africa, represemtieout 33 percent of total Water Systems sales
and increased by 23 percent in 2010 versus 2088les in Europe, Middle East and North Africa gi@mabout 5 percent.

In response to rising commodity costs.q., aluminum, copper and steel), the Company annaumagket price increases for all of the Water Syste

businesses globally, implementing or planning tplement price increases between the fourth quaft2®@10 and first quarter of 2011. The price
increases apply to nearly all sales, vary by ®eteakd product, and generally average 4 percent.
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Net Sale-Fueling Systems

Fueling Systems sales worldwide were $130.5 millamincrease of $9.3 million or about 8 percentf@l0 compared to 2009. Fueling Systems
revenues represent about 20 percent of the Comp#otgl revenues.

Sales from businesses acquired during the lastdrttm were $11.3 million or 9 percent of total sal&xcluding the acquisition, 2010 sales were $2
million a decline of about 2 percent. Change<itirg price increased net sales by $2.4 milliombout 2 percent. Sales revenue decreased by $0.5
million in 2010 due to foreign currency translation

Fueling Systems sales in the U.S. and Canadayfelbbut $11 million. The decline was caused ertibgl reduced sales of the Company’s vapor
recovery products in the State of California, auibn of 61 percent compared to the prior yeaatmut $16 million in sales revenue in 2010 compared
to the prior year. 2010 Fueling Systems saleleni.S and Canada outside of California grew byiaBgercent. The first quarter 2010 was the last
quarter which included significant sales in Califiarto meet that state’s regulatory mandates. ifg&ystems sales in international markets incibase
by about 30 percent during 2010 primarily due totcwed demand for vapor control systems in Chineeling Systems has implemented price incre
for a portion of its global products averaging apjimately 5 percent to offset raw material cosftation.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales as a percent of net sales for 20d2@09 was 67.7 percent and 70.0 percent, respcti@orrespondingly, the gross profit margin was
32.3 percent for 2010 compared to 30.0 percer2@®. The Company’s gross profit was $230.3 millimm increase of $42.5 million from the $187.8
million in 2009. The gross profit margin improvemevas primarily due to leveraging fixed costs owér fixed cost spending and higher sales. The
second largest improvement in gross profit wassaltef reduced direct labor and burden costs duke consolidation of portions of North American
manufacturing into the factory complex in Linarbiexico. The benefit from earnings attributable ¢tguisitions was about $3.2 million.

Selling, General and Administrative'SG&A")

Selling, general, and administrative (“SG&A”) exiges increased by $27.2 million or about 20 perce®09 compared to the prior year. The
Petrotechnik acquisition added $3.1 million of SG&®&penses to the Fueling Systems segment in 2BE&A expense as a percent of net sales for
2010 and 2009 was 22.5 percent and 21.3 percapgctvely. The increase in SG&A expenses was pifiyna result of higher sales commissions and
expenses related to performance-based compensétkir2.7 million. Other increases in SG&A includgfl4 million for various legal matters primarily
recognized in the Fueling Systems segment. Duhiagecond quarter 2010, Fueling Systems incurBe®iifillion in SG&A expenses for various legal
matters. Fueling Systems incurred an additionat #illion of SG&A expense principally for legal feeelated to these matters. The expenses result
from an agreement in principle with a key competitosettle numerous patent, licensing and fagdrdisputes; claims by both the California Air
Resources Board and individual air districts irt gtate relating to components of Fueling Systeviagior Recovery Systems products, as discussed in
prior quarters; and other claims involving litigatiwith James Healy, who sold Healy Systems tcCthvapany in 2006, regarding payments from an
escrow fund and earn-out fees under the purchasemgnt. Certain of the amounts incurred in thesters, which are subject to indemnification
provisions in the Healy purchase agreement, werexymensed and are also at issue in the Healgfitig. During the fourth quarter 2010, the ongoing
litigation between Franklin Fueling Systems and daiidealy was adjudicated in Federal court andraswudt Fueling Systems incurred charges of $0.5
million in SG&A expenses. Additionally, researclevelopment and engineering expenditures increasedtioe prior year by $0.8 million.

Restructuring Expense

There were $5.3 million of restructuring expense2010 compared to $6.2 million in 2009. Restrunfyiexpenses include asset impairments, seve
expenses, pension charges and manufacturing equipeiecation costs. The majority of these expengere related to the previously announced P
3 of the Company’s Global Manufacturing Realignmraggram which primarily related to the consolidatof the Siloam Springs, Arkansas facility
with the Linares, Mexico operation. In 2010, therere additional restructuring expenses of abdli® #illion that were related to acquisitions and
other restructuring consistent with the goals ef @ompany’s Global Manufacturing Realignment Progra
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As of the end of 2010, Phase 3 is considered cdmpla total, the Company had previously estimaledcost for Phase 3 to be between $10.0 million
and $12.8 million. The Company actually incurred $1million in Phase 3 expenses, from December 20@Righ the third quarter of
2010. Approximately $8.2 of the $11.8 million was non cash items.

Operating Income
Operating income was $64.1 million in 2010, up $18illion or 33 percent from 2009 operating incoafi&48.0 million.

2010 2009 2010 v 200¢

Operating income/ (los:
Water System $ 841 $ 60.z $ 23.¢
Fueling System $ 174 $ 20¢ $ (3.5
Other $ (37.9) $ (33.1) $ (4.3
Consolidated $ 641 $ 48.C $ 16.1

Operating Income-Water Systems

Water Systems operating income was $84.1 millior2i0, up $23.9 million or about 40 percent vetbassame period a year ago. Operating margins
were up 21 percent at 14.4 percent of sales in 284€us 11.9 percent in the prior year. Operatiaggins improved primarily as a result of highdesa
volume.

Operating Income-Fueling Systems
Fueling Systems operating income was $17.4 milliodecrease of $3.5 million or about 17 perceraneR009. Operating margins were 13.3 perce
sales versus 17.2 percent in the prior year. Rge&iystems operating income declined primarily essalt of higher legal expenses.

Operating Income-Other
Operating income other is composed primarily ofliocated general and administrative expenses. @eand administrative expense increases were
primarily due to higher performance based compé@nsaixpenses.

Interest Expense

Interest expense for 2010 and 2009 was $9.7 miflimh $9.5 million, respectively. Interest expens@uotstanding debt in 2010 was lower, due prim;
to decreases in debt, and was offset by $0.7 mibfinterest settlements awarded by the coutiénHealy matter described in Part I, Item 3 — Legal
Proceedings.

Other Income or Expense

Other Income or Expense for 2010 was a loss of $ill®n and was not significant for 2009. Inclutim Other income for 2010 and 2009 was interest
income of $1.5 million and $1.1 million, respectiygorimarily derived from the investment of cashldnces in short-term U.S. treasury and agency
securities. Also, included in other income in 2@H@ 2009 was income from equity investments dd $illion and $0.1 million, respectively. In 2010
and 2009, other expenses included the reversabehinification receivables related to contingertigbilities for $2.9 million and $1.5 million,
respectively.

Foreign Exchange
Foreign currencysased transactions for 2010 and 2009 were gaifig.6fmillion and $0.5 million, respectively. Thaigs in 2010 were primarily due
foreign currency translation gains in the Canadieltar and South African Rand to the U.S. dollar.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes in 2010 and 2009 $&51 million and $12.2 million, respectively. Tafective tax rates for 2010 and 2009 were 27.4
percent and 31.3 percent, respectively. The effedtix rate differs from the United States statutate of 35 percent, generally due to foreign ineo
exclusion and due to the effects of state anddoregicome taxes, net of federal tax benefits. Tom@any recorded adjustments in 2010 for uncertain
tax positions relating to acquisitions occurringpto 2010 for which indemnification was providéx in the
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respective purchase agreements and the reverga ofdemnification asset was recorded in “Otheoime/(expense)” in the Company’s statements of
income, a benefit of $2.9 million; and adjustmentthe state deferred tax rates due to domestiuntsring, a benefit of $1.6 million. The Company
further recorded a valuation allowance of $3.4ionllagainst certain state deferred tax assetssasiceuring both domestically and internationalésh
reduced taxable earnings in the U.S. and it is rikedy than not that the deferred tax assets moll be realized. The full year 2010 effective tate
before valuation allowance and other discrete adfjests was about 29.2 percent, higher than thebiztx rate of 27.4 percent, excluding the impdct o
the reversal of uncertain tax positions, adjustiémt domestic state taxes, and other non-opettax adjustments during 2010. The on-going
effective tax rate from operations is projectetbedbetween 28 percent and 30 percent for 2011.pfdjected tax rate will continue to be lower thihe
2009 rate and the statutory rate primarily duéneoindefinite reinvestment of certain foreign eagsi and reduced taxes on foreign and repatriated
earnings after the restructuring of certain foredgtities. The Company has the ability to indedilyi reinvest these foreign earnings based on the
earnings and cash projections of its other oparatas well as cash on hand and available credit.

Net Income

Net income for 2010 was $40.0 million compared@02net income of $26.7 million. Net income atitétble to Franklin Electric Co., Inc. for 20
was $39.0 million, or $1.66 per diluted share, carmsg to 2009 net income attributable to Franklieckic Co., Inc. of $26.0 million or $1.12 per déd
share.

The Company values its inventories at the lowezast or market and determines inventory costs ysiimgarily the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)

method. As of fiscal year 2011, the Company ptarhange the accounting for its remaining lasfiist-out (“LIFO”) inventory to FIFO. As of year
end 2010, approximately 10.8 percent of the Comisatpnsolidated inventories were accounted for utde LIFO method. The amount of inventory
accounted for under the LIFO method has decreasegtent years primarily due to acquisitions ofibesses with products that were dissimilar to the
Company’s existing products and that were not act=ulifor under the LIFO method, and organic growtthe business where LIFO was not used. The
Company has recognized LIFO liquidations for 20@)9 and 2008 primarily as a result of lower ineeptalances overall. For full year 2010, LIFO
adjustments resulted in income of about $0.1 mmilli®vhen comparing 2011 results to 2010, the 20E@Ladjustments will be reversed. The LIFO
reserve as of year end 2010 was approximately $llidémand will be reversed from inventory resuliiim an increase in inventory values and an
increase in the Company’s equity.

The resulting reversal for tax purposes will cremtax liability of approximately $3.2 million, pments to be spread equally over 4 years ($0.8anilli
per year), and is deemed not material to the tatsih flows of the Company over that time.

2009 // 2008

OVERVIEW

While Franklin’s overall sales declined from 2008009, Water Systems operating income marginpes@nt of sales improved from 2008 to 2009
and the Company generated record cash flow fromatipg activities as it reduced inventories andlgiiwn debt. Sales for 2009 decreased 16 percen
from 2008. Water Systems product sales were domm 2008 about 9 percent due primarily to the hayiseécession and inventory reductions by
distributors. Fueling Systems product sales dee@85 percent coming off a record year in 200&wbenefited from the sales surge for vapor
recovery systems to meet regulatory requiremen@alifornia. Despite the decline in sales voluime gross profit margin as a percent of net sales
remained flat at about 30 percent. The Companyrgée $112.6 million in cash from operations dutting full year 2009 compared to $44.4 million in
2008. Lower inventory balances contributed $43.8ianj representing a source of cash for the fathiiy2009 compared to higher inventory balances
representing a use of cash of $15.6 million in 200& Company had no outstanding balance on itsvieng debt agreement at year end 2009 comparec
to $35.0 million outstanding at the end of 2008.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales
2009 2008 2009 v 200¢
Net Sales
Water System $ 504.¢ $ 557.C % (52.2,
Fueling System $ 1212 % 188.¢ $ (67.4
Other $ - $ - 3 =
Consolidated $ 626.( $ 7456 $ (119.6

Net sales for 2009 were $626.0 million, a decredisk119.6 million or about 16 percent compared@6&sales of $745.6 million. The full ye
incremental impact of sales from businesses aadjdiveing 2008 and acquisitions in 2009 was $2416ani Sales revenue decreased by $19.6 million
or about 3 percent in 2009 due to foreign excharidee sales change for 2009, excluding acquisitasrtsforeign exchange, was a decline of $124.5
million or about 17 percent.

Net Sale-Water Systems

Water Systems sales worldwide were $504.8 milldmwn $52.2 million or 9 percent for 2009 compame@®08. Water Systems revenues represent
about 80 percent of the Company’s total salesesSabm businesses acquired during 2008 and atiqoisin 2009 were $24.5 million, primarily
Vertical. Sales revenue decreased by $18.9 milli2009 due to foreign currency translation. $hkes decline, excluding foreign currency transtati
and acquisitions, was $57.8 million or 10 percémninternational markets, Water Systems sales wedlby 3 percent as sales gains in Latin Americk
the Asia/Pacific region were offset by a declin&imrope and Africa. In the United States and Candtiger Systems sales declined by 18 percent due
primarily to the housing recession and inventouitions by distributors.

Net Sale-Fueling Systems

Fueling Systems sales worldwide were $121.2 milliodecrease of $67.4 million or 36 percent for260mpared to 2008. Fueling Systems represent
about 20 percent of the Compasyotal revenues. Fueling Systems sales in theet)i8tates fell by about $60 million. The declinesvprimarily cause
by reduced sales of the Company’s vapor recovasgiymts in the State of California, a reduction ®fp&rcent compared to the prior year or about $47
million in sales revenue in 2009 compared to therprear. Fueling Systems sales in internationatkats declined during 2009 primarily due to
unusually high shipments of vapor control system20d08 to the Beijing area as part of China’s paagto reduce air pollution prior to the Summer
Olympics.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales as a percent of net sales for 2002@08 was 70.0 percent and 69.6 percent, respécti@orrespondingly, the gross profit margin was
30.0 percent for 2009 compared to 30.4 percer2@08. The Company’s gross profit was $187.8 mill@mlecline of $39.1 million from the $226.9
million in 2008. The Compang’gross profit declined about $69.2 million dudoteer sales volume. Offsetting the sales volumddide were fixed cos
improvements of about $10.2 million. Gross pradit 2009 was further improved by lower freight anarranty costs of about $7.2 million, compared to
2008. The benefit from earnings attributable tquésitions was about $5.8 million and lastly grpssfit was improved overall by about $5.6 million
from selling price and lower raw material costs aiebther costs and product mix.

Selling, General and Administrative'SG&A™)

Selling, general, and administrative (“SG&A&Xpenses decreased by $14.4 million or about 1&epem 2009 compared to the prior year. Acquigi
primarily Vertical in Italy, added $3.5 million &G&A expenses to the Water Systems segment in 28@XRA expense as a percent of net sales for
2009 and 2008 was 21.3 percent and 19.8 percapgctvely. The increase in percentage terms idall@ver sales since SG&A expense decreases,
consistent with management’s fixed cost reductiviiatives, were not as large in percentage tersith@ Company’s decrease in sales volume.
Additionally, expenses related to variable perfancebased compensation decreased by approximatély iillion in 2009 versus 2008.
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Restructuring Expense
There were $6.2 million of nonrecurring restruatgrexpenses in 2009 compared to $2.2 million in8200

In December 2008, the Company announced Phasé@s3@lobal Manufacturing Realignment Program ferntanufacturing facilities in North America
and Brazil. Under Phase 3 in North America the @any is continuing the rationalization of manufaictg capacity between the manufacturing
complex in Linares, Mexico and its other North Ainan plants. Initially, Phase 3 of the realignmelain included the phased move of approximately
500,000 man hours of manufacturing activity to r@s approximately 80 percent of which was frono&ih Springs, Arkansas. The transfer was largely
complete as of June, 2009 and reduced manufactiatimg and overhead costs. The cost savings wéreaded at $8.0 million annually, primarily

related to lower manufacturing labor and overhezsix(i.e., cost of sales), based on 2008 volumé®ther operating variables in 2008. These cost
savings reduce inventory costs. They are realideeh the lower cost inventory is shipped (usualtg 2 quarters after production) and are impacted b
sales and production volumes. The Company incusrethx charges for Phase 3 restructuring expesfsk®.4 million ($2.2 million in 2008 and $6.2
million in 2009) including severance expenses, [mnsharges, asset write-offs, and equipment rélmc&osts. Approximately two thirds of these
charges were non-cash.

As a follow-on step to Phase 3 of the Global Mantuféang Realignment Program, the Company has arvealits plan to close its Siloam Springs,
Arkansas manufacturing facility. These costs witllude severance expenses, pension charges, agsetffs, and equipment relocation costs. These
charges are in addition to those incurred throu@®®2 Approximately 80 percent of these costs mélihon-cash, primarily asset write-offs and pension
curtailment charges.

Operating Income
Operating income was $48.0 million in 2009, dow® $2million from 2008 operating income of $76.7 lioit.

2009 2008 2009 v 200¢

Operating income/ (los!
Water System $ 60.2 $ 68.4 $ (8.2)
Fueling System $ 20¢ $ 49.4 $ (28.5
Other $ (33.0) $ (411 $ 8.C
Consolidated $ 48.C $ 767 $ (28.7

Operating Income-Water Systems
Water Systems operating income was $60.2 millior2f09, down $8.2 million or about 12 percent verhe same period a year ago. Operating
margins were down slightly at 11.9 percent of sale®09 versus 12.3 percent in the prior year.

Operating Income-Fueling Systems
Fueling Systems operating income was $20.9 millizodecrease of $28.5 million or about 58 percerguge2008. Operating margins were 17.2 percent
of sales versus 26.2 percent in the prior yeaeliffg Systems operating income declined primashaaesult of sales volume decreases.

Operating Income-Other

Operating income other is composed primarily ofliocated general and administrative expenses. akand administrative expense decreases were
primarily due to lower variable compensation expsn©ther SG&A decreases were related to managenfieed cost reduction initiatives started in
the fourth quarter of 2008.

Interest Expense

Interest expense for 2009 and 2008 was $9.5 midimh $11.0 million, respectively. Interest expedsereased in 2009 due primarily to decreases in
debt.
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Other Income or Expense

Other Income or Expense was not significant for280d was $1.8 million income in 2008. Included@ther income” for 2009 and 2008 was interest
income of $1.1 and $2.1 million, respectively, paity derived from the investment of cash balanineshort-term U.S. treasury and agency

securities. Also, included in other income in 2@®@ 2008 was income from equity investments of $@illion and $0.7 million, respectively. In 2009,
other expenses included the reversal of an indécatiifn receivable related to a contingent taxilighfor $1.5 million. The contingent tax liabili was
also reversed and the benefit was recorded imitmnie tax provision. There was no net income imfzathe Company in 2009 for the reversal of this
tax contingency. Also in 2008 the Company reachredgreement in principle to settle a trademasaking dispute and recorded a pre-tax expense of
$0.9 million to reflect the settlement payment.

Foreign Exchange
For 2009 foreign currency-based transactions weyairaof about $0.5 million due to gains in the #kakan dollar, Canadian dollar and Mexican Peso
offset by losses in the Euro and Chinese YuanedX$. dollar. For 2008 foreign currency-baseddaations were not significant.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes in 2009 and 2008 $&&2 million and $22.9 million, respectively. Taffective tax rates for 2009 and 2008 were 31.3
and 33.9 percent, respectively. The effective ta& differs from the United States statutory rdt85opercent, generally due to foreign income esicn
and due to the effects of state and foreign inctares, net of federal tax benefits. The full ye@®2 actual tax rate was 31.3 percent and was |tveer
the prior year rate of 33.9 percent and the UnfBtades statutory rate of 35 percent primarily duthé benefit of restructuring certain foreign sdiasies
which resulted in a one-time adjustment for cerfameign tax benefits and other one-time discretnés lowering the rate about 132 basis points.

Net Income

Net income for 2009 was $26.7 million compared@02net income of $44.7 million. Net income atitétble to Franklin Electric Co., Inc. for 20
was $26.0 million, or $1.12 per diluted share, cared to 2008 net income attributable to Franklieckic Co., Inc. of $44.1 million or $1.90 per déd
share.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity aretciews from operations and funds available unteecommitted, unsecured, revolving credit
agreement maturing in 2011 (the “Agreement”) in@hgount of $120.0 million, and its amended andatestuncommitted note purchase and private
shelf agreement (the “Prudential Agreement”) inaheount of $200.0 million, with notes issued thader beginning to mature in 2015. Over the
course of 2011, the Company plans to renew the ékgeat with similar borrowing capacity, terms, aodditions that reflect market conditions at such
time of renewal. The Company has no schedulecipdhpayments on the Prudential Agreement untl520As of January 1, 2011 the Company had
$116.7 million borrowing capacity under the Agreatand $50.0 million borrowing capacity under thradential Agreement. The uncertainty in the
financial and credit markets has not impacted itnedity of the Company and the Company expectsahgoing requirements for operations, capital
expenditures, dividends, and debt service will degaately funded from its existing credit agreemmefithe Agreement and the Prudential Agreement dc
not contain any material adverse changes, or Sipilavisions that would accelerate the maturitpaiounts drawn under either agreement. The
Agreement and Prudential Agreement contain varussomary conditions and covenants, which limitpaghother things, borrowings, interest
coverage, loans or advances and investments. dhgp&ny’s main financial covenants include an irdeceverage ratio and a leverage ratio. As of
January 1, 2011, the Company was in compliance alitbovenants.

The Company believes that internally generateddardl existing credit arrangements provide sufiidiguidity to meet current commitments and
service existing debt. The Company’s revolving lagneement with its banks is in place until the eh#011 and the Company has no scheduled
principal payments on its long term debt until 2015

Net cash flows from operating activities were $9@iion in 2010 compared to $112.6 million in 2088d $44.4 million in 2008. Cash provic

improved in 2010 primarily as a result of a conidiemphasis on reducing inventories, offset bydrgitcounts receivable due to increased sales. The
operating cash flow improvement in
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2009 was primarily a result of lower accounts reable, due to lower sales and the timing of custgpagments, reduced inventories, as management
focused on reducing inventory levels due to ecorand business conditions including the reduced gear year sales, and the timing of tax payments
in 2009. Income taxes were a source of cash i® 280ax payments were decreased in 2009, corisigthrestimated payment requirements, versus an
overpayment of taxes in 2008. The operating clsh iimprovement in 2008 was largely a result ofagee Fueling Systems income from continuing
operations and normal fluctuations in operatingtssand liabilities related to overall results pémtions. Fueling Systems revenue growth in 2088

led by strong vapor recovery system sales in Qaliéo

Net cash used in investing activities was $24.2ionilin 2010 compared to $28.7 million in 2009 &&5.0 million in 2008. During 2010 the Compe
acquired PetroTechnik Limited for $11.8 milliontid cash acquired. The acquisition was fundedh witsh on hand. Additionally, $13.7 million was
used for property, plant and equipment additior0h0. During 2009 the Company acquired VerticplA for $16.8 million, net of acquired

cash. The acquisition was funded with cash on hamtlitionally, $12.0 million was used for propgrplant and equipment additions in 2009. The
2008 activities were primarily related to $38.4lmil, net of cash acquired, used to acquire Inéhs®8chneider SA on January 9, 2008. The acaunsiti
was funded with cash and long-term borrowings utiderAgreement. Additionally, $25.6 million wasedsfor property, plant and equipment additions
in 2008.

Net cash used in financing activities was $14.3ionilin 2010 compared to $47.3 million in 2009 ared cash provided in 2008 of $8.9 million. Dur
2010 the Company had the opportunity to repurchppeoximately 226,500 shares of the Company’s comstack for $6.9 million pursuant to the
Stock Redemption Agreement. Dividends in the amo@i$12.3 million were paid to shareholders. 0092, the cash used in financing activities was
primarily related to debt repayments, net of debtpeds, and dividends of $11.9 million paid torshalders. Net cash provided by financing actegiti

of $8.9 million in 2008 was primarily related toogeeds from new debt incurred, net of repayme#tso included was the repurchase of approximately
235,100 shares of the Company’s common stock fd@ @ifllion and the payment of $11.4 million in dieinds to its shareholders.

2010 AGGREGATE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
Most of the Company contractual obligations to third parties are deddigations. In addition, the Company has certaintractual obligations for futu
lease payments, contingency payments and purctidigations. The payment schedule for these contedabligations is as follows:

(In millions) Less thar More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Debt $ 151¢ $ 0.e $ 0€ $ 304 $ 120.(
Debt interes 56.5 8.7 17.4 16.5 13.¢
Capital lease 0.7 0.t 0.2 - -
Operating lease 19.4 6.€ 8.2 1.6 2.7
Contingencies from Healy Systel 1.C 1.C - - -
Purchase obligations 2.2 2.2 - - -
$ 231.¢ $ 19.6 $ 264 $ 486 $ 136.¢

The calculated debt interest was based on the fixtedof 5.79 percent for the Company’s long-teehtduinder the Prudential Agreement and the six
month Euro Interbank Offered Rate (“Euribor”) pluse percent paid on subsidiary debt of €0.6 millimaturing in 2012 and £0.6 million at one and
three quarter percent maturing in the year 2015.

The Healy Systems stock purchase agreement profodediditional contingent payments of 5 percentertain Healy Systems product sales over the
next five years from the year of acquisition in 800

The Company has pension and other post-retiremanflh obligations not included in the table abawech will result in future payments of $16.1
million in 2011. The Company also has unrecognizedenefits, none of which are included in tH#gabove. The unrecognized tax benefits of
approximately $3.6 million have been recorded asilities and the Company is uncertain as to ivben such amounts may be settled. Related to the
unrecognized tax benefits, the Company has alswded a liability for potential penalties and irgstr of $0.4 million.
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ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acoting Standards Codification (*“ASC”) Topic 810pnsolidation, required presentation changes
to the Company'’s financial statements in 2009. Thepany currently has two subsidiaries that ach @ percent owned by the Company and 25
percent owned by minority shareholders (i.e., thecontrolling interest). The change to the Stat@mef Income includes the separate presentation of
net income attributable to the noncontrolling ie&rin its subsidiaries previously included in thther income” line of the Statement of Income.eTh
changes to the Balance Sheets includes a sepaeaengation of noncontrolling interest previousigluded in “long-term liabilities” and the additiaf

a mezzanine equity item “redeemable noncontroilingrest” for an acquisition - related put optiofhe change to the Statements of Cash Flows
includes net income before net income attributédoklne noncontrolling interest in the presentatibeash flows from operating activities. The
Statement of Equity and Comprehensive Income/(Lass)updated to show separate columns for nondbingrinterest and redeemable noncontrolling
interest.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Management’s discussion and analysis of its firelragndition and results of operations are basexh tipe Company’s consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordgitttaccounting principles generally accepted i thnited States of America. The preparation of
these financial statements requires managemenake estimates and judgments that affect the regp@arteunts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses, and the related disclosure of contiregsgts and liabilities. Management evaluatesitmates on an on-going basis. Estimates are lmsed
historical experience and on other assumptionsatteabelieved to be reasonable under the circumssaithe results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying value of assets afdlities that are not readily apparent from otbeurces. Actual results may differ from these estas
under different assumptions or conditions. Theeeemo material changes to estimates in 2010.

The Company'’s critical accounting estimates aratifled below:

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts:

Accounts receivable is comprised of balances dum ftustomers net of estimated allowances for uaecttile accounts. In determining allowances,
historical collection experience, current trendgng of accounts receivable, and periodic creditieations of customers’ financial condition are
analyzed to arrive at appropriate allowances. Afloee levels change as customer-specific circumssaaied the other analysis areas previously noted
change. Based on current knowledge, the Compaey dat believe there is a reasonable likelihoodttiexe will be a material change in the estimates
or assumptions used to determine the allowance.

Inventory Valuation:

The Company uses certain estimates and judgmentdue inventory. Inventory is recorded at the lowkcost or market. The Company reviews its
inventories for excess or obsolete products or @mapts. Based on an analysis of historical usageagemens evaluation of estimated future dem:
market conditions and alternative uses for possiktess or obsolete parts, carrying values aresedju The carrying value is reduced regularly to
reflect the age and current anticipated productatemif actual demand differs from the estimatdsljtioonal reductions would be necessary in theqot
such determination is made. The Company’s redervexcess or obsolete products or components gsasfend 2010 was $16.4 million. Excess and
obsolete inventory is periodically disposed of tigb sale to third parties, scrapping or other meamnd the reserves are appropriately reduced.

Business Combinations:

The Company follows the guidance under FASB ASCid@ 805,Business Combinationsl'he acquisition purchase price is allocated éabsets
acquired and liabilities assumed based upon thepactive fair values. The Company shall repoitsifinancial statements provisional amounts fer t
items for which accounting is incomplete. Goodyglhdjusted for any changes to provisional amoonratde within the measurement period. The
Company utilizes management estimates and an indepéthird-party valuation firm to assist in detéring the fair values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. Such estimates and valuatiegsire the Company to make significant assumptiortiuding projections of future events and
operating performance. The Company has not maglenaterial changes to the method of valuing faluga of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
during the last three years.
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Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest:

In the first quarter of 2009 the Company complatedacquisition of 75 percent of Vertical S.p.Ahelremaining 25 percent noncontrolling interest was
recorded at fair value as of the acquisition dafée noncontrolling interest holders have theaptd require the Company to redeem their ownership
interests in the future with cash. The redemptiaiue will be derived using a specified formuladzhen an earnings multiple adjusted by the net debt
position of Vertical, subject to a redemption fla@lue at the time of redemption. Impairment assesnts are performed on a quarterly basis. The
carrying amount of the redeemable noncontrollingriest currently approximates its redemption valRedemption value adjustments were not
considered material in 2010 and were not requiné2DD9, and consequently, there were no incremadjastments in the earnings per share calcule

Trade Names and Goodwiill:

According to FASB ASC Topic 35Mntangibles — Goodwill and Othelintangible assets with indefinite lives must éstéd for impairment at least
annually or more frequently if events or circumsesindicate that assets might be impaired. Thap@oy uses a variety of methodologies in
conducting impairment assessments including disealcash flow models, which the Company believescansistent with hypothetical market

data. For indefinite-lived assets apart from goididprimarily trade names for the Company, if tiaér value is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment charge is recognized in an amount euéilat excess. The Company has not made anyialateanges to the method of evaluating
impairments during the last three years. Baseclorent knowledge, the Company does not believetisea reasonable likelihood that there will be a
material change in the estimates or assumptiort tasgetermine impairment.

Also under the guidance of FASB ASC Topic 350, geitids not amortized; however it is tested at theorting unit level for impairment annually or
more frequently whenever events or changes in istances indicate that there may be impairmenpoRieg units are operating segments or one level
below, known as components, which can be aggredatddsting purposes. The Company’s goodwillliscated to the Fueling Systems unit and the
Water Systems units. As the Company’s businessirealves management will continue to evaluategporting units and review the aggregation
criteria.

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill (iimpairment testing), the Company looks at bothrttaeket valuation approach, where the Company’s
current and projected financial results are comp#meentities of similar size and industry to detere the market value of the Company, and the cash
flow approach which requires assumptions regardstignated future cash flows and other factors terdgne the fair value of the respective

assets. Such cash flows consider factors suckpesied future operating income and historicaldsgas well as the effects of demand and comprtitio
If the Company’s assumptions and estimates chamgeely fair value of the reporting units is beldwit associated carrying values, the Company may
be required to record impairment. Goodwill inclddm the balance sheet as of year ended 2010 v8&s2thillion.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company cletsal its annual impairment test of indefinite tivieade names and goodwill and determined the
value of all reporting units were substantiallyekcess of the respective reporting unit’s carryiaye. Significant judgment is required to deterenif
an indication of impairment has taken place. Fado be considered include: adverse change iratipgrresults, decline in strategic business plans,
significantly lower future cash flows, and sustéileadecline in market data such as market capéitidin. A 10 percent decrease in the fair value
estimates used in the impairment test would noelenanged this determination. This sensitivitylgsia required the use of judgment and numerous
subjective assumptions, which, if actual experierarges, could result in material differences ia tequirements for impairment charges. Further, an
extended downturn in the economy may impact cetamponents of the operating segments more signifiz and could result in changes to the
aggregation assumptions and impairment determimatio

Income Taxes:

Under the requirements of FASB ASC Topic 7gome Taxesthe Company records deferred tax assets anditiiedbior the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between financial stagt carrying amounts of existing assets and lt@sland their respective tax bases. Deferredszet:
and liabilities are measured using enacted tas tpected to apply to taxable income in the yigawghich those temporary differences are expeated t
be recovered or settled. The Company analyzesefegrdd tax assets and liabilities for their futtgalization based on the estimated existence of
sufficient taxable income. This analysis considkesfollowing sources of taxable income; prior iyexable income, future reversals of existing Hde&a
temporary differences, future taxable
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income exclusive of reversing temporary differenged tax planning strategies that would generathie income in the relevant period. If sufficient
taxable income is not projected then the Compatiyr@dord a valuation allowance against the relévkmfierred tax assets. The Company operates in
multiple tax jurisdictions with different tax ratesnd determines the allocation of income to edchese jurisdictions based upon various estimarels
assumptions. In the normal course of business tmepany will undergo tax audits by various tax jdigsions. Such audits often require an extended
period of time to complete and may result in incdeeadjustments if changes to the allocation egeiired between jurisdictions with different takes
Although the Company has recorded all probableritetax uncertainties in accordance with FASB AS@id @40, these accruals represent estimates
that are subject to the inherent uncertaintiescatam with the tax audit process, and therefockide uncertainties. Management judgment is requir
in determining the Company'’s provision for incoragds, deferred tax assets and liabilities, which¢tual experience varies, could result in materia
adjustments to deferred tax assets and liabilifibse. Company’s operations involve dealing with utaiaties and judgments in the application of
complex tax regulations in multiple jurisdictiodie final taxes paid are dependent upon many fadtaecluding negotiations with taxing authorities i
various jurisdictions and resolution of disputesiag from federal, state, and international tagitsu

The Company has not made any material changese tmé¢thod of developing the income tax provisiorirduthe last three years. Based on current
knowledge, the Company does not believe thergeéasonable likelihood that there will be a matect@nge in the estimates or assumptions used to
develop the income tax provision.

Pension and Employee Benefit Obligations:

With the assistance of the Company’s actuariesgigeunt rates used to determine pension andrptistment plan liabilities are calculated using a
yield-curve approach. The yield-curve approachalists each expected cash flow of the liabilityatneat an interest rate based on high quality
corporate bonds. The present value of the discdurgsh flows is summed and an equivalent weightedage discount rate is calculated. Market
conditions have caused the discount rate to mmre §.75 percent last year to 5.25 percent this fgrgrension plans and from 5.50 percent last year
5.00 percent this year for postretirement healthlde insurance. A change in the discount ratectedd by the Company of 25 basis points would tesul
in a change of about $0.3 million of employee bireefpense and a change of about $4.3 millionadfility. The Company consults with actuaries and
investment advisors in making its determinatiomthef expected long-term rate of return on plan as&iing input from these consultations such ag-lon
term investment sector expected returns, the @iioek and standard deviations thereof, and theasaet allocation, the Company has assumed an
expected long-term rate of return on plan asse8&2# percent as of year-end 2010. This is thdtresstochastic modeling showing the B@ercentile
median return at least at or above 8.25 percenthahge in the long-term rate of return selectethbyCompany of 25 basis points would result in a
change of about $0.3 million of employee beneffiense.

Share-Based Compensation:

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optiaination model with a single approach and
amortized using a straight-line attribution metloa@r the option’s vesting period. Options grantedetirement eligible employees are immediately
expensed. The Company uses historical data to &stithe expected volatility of its stock; the weeghaverage expected life; the period of time oio
granted are expected to be outstanding; and itdetid yield. The risk-free rates for periods wittie contractual life of the option are based enuhsS.
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of targ. The Company has not made any material clsatogtae method of estimating fair values during
last three years. Based on current knowledgeCtimpany does not believe there is a reasonabliéhlilael that there will be a material change in the
estimates or assumptions used to develop thedaiewof stock based compensation.

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

This annual report on Form 10-K contains certamvérd-looking information, such as statements alioeitCompany’s financial goals, acquisition
strategies, financial expectations including aptéd revenue or expense levels, business prospeatset positioning, product development,
manufacturing re-alignment, capital expendituras,ienefits and expenses, and the effect of caenicigs or changes in accounting policies. Forward-
looking statements are typically identified by wet phrases such as “believe,” “expect,” “antitéga‘intend,” “estimate,” “may increase,” “may
fluctuate,” “plan,” “goal,” “target,” “strategy,” ad similar expressions or future or conditionalbgesuch as “may,” “will,” “should,” “would,” and
“could.” While the Company believes that the asgtioms underlying such forward-
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looking statements are reasonable based on preseditions, forward-looking statements made byGbenpany involve risks and uncertainties and are
not guarantees of future performance. Actual resuhly differ materially from those forward-lookistatements as a result of various factors, incydin
general economic and currency conditions, variaumglitions specific to the Company’s business addstry, new housing starts, weather conditions,
market demand, competitive factors, changes imibligton channels, supply constraints, technolagptdrs, litigation, government and regulatory
actions, the Company’s accounting policies, futeeeds, and other risks, all as described in Iténadd Exhibit 99.1 of this Form 10-K. Any forward-
looking statements included in this Form 10-K aasddl upon information presently available. The Camypoes not assume any obligation to update
any forward-looking information.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company is subject to market risk associatéld ghianges in foreign currency exchange ratesrardeist rates. Foreign currency exchange rate risk
is mitigated through several means: maintenandecaf production facilities in the markets serviedpicing of customers in the same currency as the
source of the products, prompt settlement of intanpany balances utilizing a global netting syséem limited use of foreign currency denominated
debt.

The results of operations are exposed to changeseirest rates primarily with respect to borroveingder the Company’s revolving credit agreement
(the “Agreement”), where interest rates are tieth®prime rate or London Interbank Offered Rat¢BQR). The Company had zero borrowings for the
year 2010 under the Agreement. The Company ddagssi@ matter of policy, enter into derivative ttaats for speculative purposes.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIARIES

(In thousands, except per share amot

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profil

Selling, general and administrative exper
Restructuring expenses

Operating incom

Interest expens

Other income/(expens

Foreign exchange income

Income before income tax

Income taxes

Net income

Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingiests

Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Ca¢l

Income per share
Basic
Diluted

Dividends per common share

2010 2009 2008
$ 713,79. $ 625,99. $ 745,62°
483,49: 438,15: 518,70:
230,30( 187,83¢ 226,92
160,86: 133,62 147,98
5,332 6,19t 2,22¢

64,10: 48,01t 76,74(
(9,697 (9,54¢) (10,96¢)

(299 (26) 1,84(

967 451 5

55,07¢ 38,89: 67,58:
15,10¢ 12,16¢ 22,92t

$ 3997: $ 26,72 $ 44,66
(1,009 (73€) (551)

$ 38,96¢ $ 25,98¢ $ 44,11
$ 166 $ 112 $ 1.92
$ 166 $ 112 $ 1.9C
$ 05 $ 0.5 $ 0.5C

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIARIES

(In thousands

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale
Receivables, less allowances
$2,340 and $2,464, respectiv
Inventories
Raw materiz
Worl-in-process
Finished good
LIFO reserve

Deferred income taxe
Other current assets

Total current asse

Property, plant and equipment, at c
Land and building
Machinery and equipme
Furniture & fixtures
Other

Less allowance for depreciation

Assets held for sal
Intangible assel
Goodwill

Other asset

Total assets
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2010 2009
140,07C  $ 86,87¢
70,82¢ 62,84
51,46¢ 53,88¢
12,46: 12,55¢
76,30¢ 82,28¢
(14,225 (14,329
126,00° 134,40
18,76: 15,57"
14,78" 11,89(
370,45t 311,50:
84,72 83,91
181,29: 188,54:
20,92 18,77:
6,32: 3,53:
293,26. 294,76
(150,18¢) (147,59
143,07 14717
2,32¢ -
89,01 88,91:
165,19: 161,76
9,85¢ 8,861
77991« $ 718,29




LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expense
Income taxe
Current maturities of lor-term
debt and short-term borrowings
Total current liabilitie:
Long-term deb
Deferred income taxe
Employee benefit plan obligatiol
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Redeemable noncontrolling inter:

Shareowners' equit

Common stock (65,000 shares authorized, $.10alae)

outstanding (23,257 and 23,128, respectiv

Additional capita
Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss)

Total shareowners' equ
Noncontrolling interes
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$ 39,08: $ 31,69¢
64,71 44,26

4,26¢ 6,44¢

1,241 73E

109,30 83,14
151,24 151,24
17,88: 3,26¢

65,96 74,17¢

8,31: 8,86¢

7,291 7,39:

2,32¢ 2,31¢

129,70 119,13
305,26( 285,46
(19,44;) (18,740)

417 ,84¢ 388,17

2,05¢ 2,03

419,90 390,21

$  77991: $ 718,29




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIARIES

(In thousands

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
cash flows from operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizati
Share based compensal
Deferred income taxi
(Gain)/Loss on disposals of plant and equiptr
Asset impairmer
Foreign exchange incor
Excess tax from shebased payment arrangeme
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Receivable
Inventorie:
Accounts payable and accrued expe
Income taxe
Employee benefit plai
Other
Net cash flows from operating activiti
Cash flows from investing activitie
Additions to plant and equipme
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipn
Additions to other asse
Purchases of securiti
Proceeds from sale of securit
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acqt
Net cash flows from investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from lor-term debi
Repayment of lor-term debr
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Excess tax from she-based payment arrangeme
Purchases of common stc
Dividends paid
Net cash flows from financing activitit
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net change in cash and equivale
Cash and equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and equivalents at end of period
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2010 2009 2008
$ 39,97: $ 26,72: $ 44,66
24,04( 25,38t 24,16«
4,27¢ 4,97¢ 3,68¢
9,69¢ (1,549 12,39t
(1,632 3,28¢ 17€
2,42( - -
967 - -
(1,321) (144) (85€)
(3,58¢) 15,96¢ (2,750
13,41¢ 43,88« (15,617)
21,37: (6,79¢) (7,699
(2,874) 9,41¢ (8,979
(6,745) (1,604) (215)
(5,385) (6,961) (4,534)
94,61 112,58! 44, 44
(13,709 (12,039 (25,647)
1,76¢ 73 21
(43€) (5) (965)
- - (9,000)
- - 9,00(
(11,78%) (16,767 (38,38()
(24,169 (28,739 (64,965
- 28,00 70,00
(1,218 (64,217 (46,236
5,01¢ 66€ 3,44¢
1,321 144 85¢€
(7,242 - (7,816)
(12,33 (11,890 (11,369
(14,45%) (47,297 8,881
(2,79%) 3,38¢ (6,682)
53,10 39,04 (18,31%)
86,87 46,93« 65,25:
$ 14007 $ 86,87 $ 46,93«




(In thousands
Cash paid for income tax
Cash paid for intere:

& P

Non-cash items

Payable to seller of Healy Systems, |

Payable to seller of Western Pump LL

Additions to property, plant, and equipment, ndtped
Capital equipment leas

Stock option exercises, forfeitures, or stock egtients

H P BH B P

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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13,90:
9,69:

$

&

AP BH B P

15,657
9,522

1,58¢
11€
1,822

291

& P

AP BH B P

22,34¢
11,23«
56¢

18t
92t




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVENCOME/(LOSS)

FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIIARIES

(In thousands

Common Share ~ Common  Additional Retained Accumulated Comprehensiv Non Redeemable
Oustanding Stock Capital Earnings Other Income/(Loss controlling Noncontrolling
Comprehensive Interest Interest

Income /(Loss

Balance year end 200 $2,30¢ $105,42! $246,32 $24,48: $1,06¢
23,09:
Net Income $44,11: $44,11: $551
Currency translation $(32,939 (32,939
adjustmen

Minimum pension

liability adjustment
net of tax $18,071 (29,580 (29,580
Comprehensive income $§18,408

Dividends on common (11,369
stock
Noncontrolling (445,
dividend
Common stock issue 147 $1t $3,43(
Share based 16 2 3,68¢
compensatiol
Common stock
repurchased or receiv
for stock options (236, (24) (7,792,
exercisec
Tax benefit of stock
options
exercise( 85€

Balance year end 20( 23,01¢ $2,30: $113,39° $271,27: $(38,036 $1,17( 5

Net Income $25,98t¢ $25,98t¢ $521 $217
Currency translation $23,79° 23,79 69€ 54¢
adjustmen
Minimum pension
liability adjustment
net of tax $2,800 (4,501 (4,501

Comprehensive income $45,28.

Dividends on common (11,540
stock
Noncontrolling (350;
Dividend
Common stock issue 36 $3 $62¢
Share based 88 9 4,967
compensatiol
Common stock
repurchased or receiv
for stock options a4 Q) (253
exercisec
Adjustment to acquired fair valt 6,631
Tax benefit of stock
options
exercise( 144

Balance year end 20( $23,12¢ $2,31: $119,13: $285,46° $(18,740 $2,03: $7,39¢
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Net income

Currency translation
adjustmen

Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of tax $70!
Comprehensive income

Dividends on common stot
Noncontrolling dividenc
Common stock issue
Share+based compensatic
Common stock repurchas¢
or received for stock optiol
exercisec

Adjustment to acquired fai
value

Tax benefit of stock option
exercisec

Balance year end 20:

Common
Shares
Outstanding

271
97

(239,

23,25}

Common
Stock

$2¢

(24)

$2,32¢

Additional
Capital

$4,987
4,26/

1,321
$129,70!

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Comprehensiv

Retained Accumulated Oth¢  Income/
Earnings Comprehensive (Loss)
Income (Loss
$38,96¢ $38,96¢

$72( 72C
(1,422 (1,422
$38,2€
(11,957
(7,218
$305,26! ($19,442

Non Redeemable
controlling Noncontrolling
Interest Interest
$56¢ $43¢
(170; (541,

(377,
$2,05¢ $7,29:




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT?¢
FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIARIES

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Company --“Franklin Electric” or the “Company” shall reféo Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and its consolidatedbsidiaries.

Fiscal Year--The Company's fiscal year ends on the SaturdageseDecember 31. The financial statements arshgzanying notes are as of and for
the years ended January 1, 2011 (52 weeks), JaBuafio (52 weeks), and January 3, 2009 (53 weeahd)referred to as 2010, 2009, and 2008,
respectively.

Principles of Consolidation--The consolidated financial statements includeatteounts of Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and itesolidated
subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions hagerbeliminated.

Revenue Recognition-Products are shipped utilizing common carriersaito customers or, for consignment productsusgiomer specified
warehouse locations. Sales are recognized whe@dh®pany’s products are shipped direct or, in thee ed consignment products, transferred from the
customer specified warehouse location to the custpat which time transfer of ownership and riskosk pass to the customer. The Company records
net sales revenues after discounts at the timaleftmsed on specific discount programs in efféstorical data, and experience.

Research and Development ExpenseThe Companys research and development activities are chamexrlpgense in the period incurred. The Comg
incurred expenses of approximately $7.5 millio2@10, $6.9 million in 2009, and $6.8 million in A0

Fair Value of Financial Instruments --The carrying amount of long-term debt was $15@iion at January 1, 2011 and $150.7 million atukry 2,

2010, respectively. The estimated fair value $#82.0 million and $153.4 million at January 1, 2@Gthd January 2, 2010, respectively. In the alesenc
of quoted prices in active markets, consideraldgiuent is required in developing estimates offalue. Estimates are not necessarily indicativinef
amounts the Company could realize in a current gtarknsaction. In determining the fair valuetsfiong-term debt the Company uses estimates base
on rates currently available to the Company fortaath similar terms and remaining maturities. T®@mpany’s off-balance sheet instruments consist
of operating leases, which are not significant.

Accounts Receivable, Earned Discounts, and Allowardor Uncollectible Accounts--Accounts receivable are stated at estimatedeadizable value.
Accounts receivable are comprised of balances mune €ustomers, net of earned discounts and estihaditevances for uncollectible accounts. Earned
discounts are based on specific customer agreeerams. In determining allowances for uncollectidteounts, historical collection experience, current
trends, aging of accounts receivable, and periodidit evaluations of customers’ financial conditare reviewed. The Company believes that the
allowance is appropriate; however, actual expedamuld differ from the original estimates, requiriadjustments to the reserve.

Inventories --Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orkeia The majority of the cost of domestic and fgnenventories is determined using the
first-in, first-out (FIFO) method; a portion of iamtory costs is determined using the last-in,-fingt (LIFO) method. Inventories stated on the LIFO
method were approximately 10.8ercent and 14.9 percent of total inventories ib®&nd 2009, respectively. The Company has recednimmaterial
LIFO liquidations for 2010, 2009 and 2008 primagly a result of lower inventory balances overdlhe Company reviews its inventories for excess or
obsolete products or components. Based on an amalysistorical usage and management’s evaluati@stimated future demand, market conditions
and alternative uses for possible excess or olesplats, reserves are recorded.

Property, Plant and Equipment--Property, plant and equipment are stated at ddspreciation of plant and equipment is calculated straight line

basis over the estimated useful lives of 5 to 28ryéor land improvements and buildings, 5 to 18rgéor machinery and equipment, and 5 years for
furniture and fixtures.
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Maintenance, repairs, and renewals of a minor eadve expensed as incurred. Betterments and neasjemnels which extend the useful lives of
buildings, improvements, and equipment are capédli Accelerated methods are used for income tepogas. The Company reviews its property, plant
and equipment for impairment at the asset grougl henever events or changes in circumstancesdtedthat the carrying amount of such assets may
not be recoverable. The Company’s depreciationes@&vas $19.5 million, $20.2 million, and $19.5limil in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets-- The Company performs goodwill impairment testiogits reporting units, which have been deterrditebe
Water Systems and Fueling Systems. In compliantemASB ASC Topic 350intangibles - Goodwill and Otherthe Company has evaluated the
aggregation criteria and determined that its coreptsican be aggregated in 2010. Goodwill tessmeiformed on an annual basis in the fourth quarte
or more frequently whenever events or a chang&dnmstances indicate that there may be impairmbntesting for impairment, the Company
determines the fair value of its reporting uniEair value is assessed using a combination of @mnie approach, which estimates fair value based upo
future revenue, expenses and cash flows discototieir present value, and a market approach,iwdstimates fair value using market multipliers of
various financial measures compared to a set opasatle public companies.

If the carrying value of the reporting unit is hégtthan its fair value, there is an indication tingpairment may exist and the second step of tgstin
outlined in FASB ASC Topic 350, must be performedrteasure the amount of impairment loss. The atmfimpairment is determined by comparing
the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwidl its carrying value in the same manner as if gp®rting units were being acquired in a business
combination. Specifically, the Company would a#ltethe fair value to all of the assets and liaediof the reporting unit, including any unrecaggd
intangible assets, in a hypothetical analysiswaild calculate the implied fair value of goodwilk the implied fair value of goodwill is less thahe
recorded goodwill, the Company would record an impent charge for the difference.

The Company also tests its indefinite lived tradésdor impairment annually. Fair value is detered using an income approach, which estimate:
value based upon future revenue.

Amortization is recorded for other intangible assgith definite lives calculated on a basis thfients cash flows over the estimated useful livEke
weighted average number of years over which eaelngible class is amortized is 17 years for patghyears for supply agreements, 15 years for
technology, 17-20 years for customer relationstaps, 8 years for all others.

Warranty Obligations --Warranty terms are generally two years from dditmanufacture or one year from date of instaltatibhe general warranty
liability is recorded when revenue is recognized srbased on actual historical return rates frioenmhost recent warranty periods. In 2007, the
Company began offering an extended warranty prodgoacertain Water Systems customers, which prowidasanty coverage up to five years from the
date of manufacture. Provisions for estimated egpgmelated to product warranty are made at the pirnducts are sold or when specific warranty
are identified. These estimates are established) usstorical information about the nature, frequerand average cost of warranty claims, and ergect
customer returns. The Company actively studiesdgeri warranty claims and takes action to improngglpct quality and minimize warranty claims. ~
Company believes that the warranty reserve is apjate; however, actual claims incurred could diffem the original estimates, requiring adjustns

to the reserve.

Income Taxes--Income taxes are accounted for in accordance WAtBB ASC Topic 740lncome Taxes Under this guidance, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on the differelmewveen the financial statement and tax basiss#tasnd liabilities and net operating loss anditre
carry forwards using enacted tax rates in effecttie year in which the differences are expecte@verse. Valuation allowances are established when
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to therasnexpected to be realized. The Company recolidbitity for uncertain tax positions by establish

a recognition threshold and measurement attritartescognition and measurement of a tax positikariaor expected to be taken in a tax return.

Share-Based Compensatior The Company accounts for compensation costalf@hare-based payments based on the grant-datafiee estimated
in accordance with fair value provisions.
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Pension--The Company makes its determination for pengiosiretirement and post employment benefit platslities based on management
estimates and consultation with actuaries, incaiiog estimates and assumptions of future planiceposts, future interest costs on projected lienef
obligations, rates of compensation increases, eyeplturnover rates, anticipated mortality ratepeeked investment returns on plan assets, asset
allocation assumptions of plan assets, and otlotoria

Earnings Per Common Share-Basic and diluted earnings per share are companddlisclosed in accordance with FASB ASC Topig, Earnings
Per Share. Earnings per share are based on the weightedgw&umber of common shares outstanding. Dilutadregs per share is computed based
upon earnings applicable to common shares divigetidweighted-average number of common sharesamdisig during the period adjusted for the
effect of other dilutive securities.

Translation of Foreign Currencies--All assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiari@ functional currency other than the U.S. dddler translated at
year end exchange rates. All revenue and experseiats are translated at average rates in effettgithe respective period. Adjustments for
translating foreign currency assets and liabilitteb).S. dollars are included as a component oéiotiomprehensive income. Transaction gains and
losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuatiom$ngluded in the results of operations in “Fore@xchange income/(loss)”, as incurred.

Significant Estimates--The preparation of financial statements in comfiey with accounting principles generally accepitethe United States requires
management to make significant estimates and aggumhat affect the reported amounts of assetdiahilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial sta¢eits and the reported amounts of expenses durngporting periods. Significant estimates and
assumptions by management affect allowance forllgutible accounts, inventory valuation, businessbinations, redeemable noncontrolling interest,
trade names and goodwill, income taxes, pensiorearmoyee benefit obligations, and share-based easgtion.

Although the Company regularly assesses theseastimactual results could materially differ. The{pany bases its estimates on historical experience
and various other assumptions that it believesteehsonable under the circumstances.

2.  ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

FASB ASC Topic 810Consolidation, required presentation changes to the Comsafigancial statements in 2009. The Company ctlgrdras twc
subsidiaries that are each 75 percent owned byCtmpany and 25 percent owned by minority sharehsl@es., the noncontrolling interest). ~
change to the Statements of Income includes tharaep presentation of net income attributable ® rloncontrolling interest in its subsidia
previously included in the “other incomdihe of the Statement of Income. The changes & Bhlance Sheets include a separate presental
noncontrolling interest previously included in “perm liabilities” and the addition of a mezzaneguity item “redeemable noncontrolling interefst’
an acquisition felated put option. The change to the Statemdn@ash Flows includes net income before net incatirébutable to the noncontrolli
interest in the presentation of cash flows fromrapeg activities. The Statement of Equity and @oehensive Income/(Loss) was updated to ¢
separate columns for noncontrolling interest angteenable noncontrolling interest.

3. ACQUISITIONS

In an agreement dated September 3, 2010, betweesr€@oS.r.l. (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Ca@myp) and PetroTechnik Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Petrotechnik”), the Company acquiaf the outstanding shares of Petrotechnik ofietebt acquired, for approximately £8.4 million,
$12.9 million at the then current exchange ratbjent to certain terms and conditions. The consitlen transferred to the sellers consisted of cash

Petrotechnik, located in Suffolk, United Kingdomamufactures lightweight and flexible undergroungepivork systems which are used in a variety of
fuel transfer applications and is also a designdrraanufacturer of above and below ground fuebsgteisystems and pressure vessels. Petrotechnik’s
systems provide the Company access to a worldwideomer base and growth territories.
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The intangible assets of $8.6 million consist prilgeof trade names, customer relationships, anadgall. All of the goodwill was recorded as paft o
the Fueling Systems segment and is not expectied tieductible for tax purposes.

The purchase price assigned to each major ideigfi@sset and liability was as follows:

(In millions)
Assets:
Current assets (including cash acqui $ 12.1
Property, plant and equipme 4.€
Intangible asse 5.1
Goodwill 3.5
Total assets $ 25 4
Liabilities (12.5)
Total purchase price $ 12.€

The fair value of the identifiable intangible assahd property, plant and equipment are final dsoél year end 2010 in conjunction with final
valuations. The Company utilized management estisnand consultation with an independent thirdypaatuation firm to assist in the valuation.

The results of operations of Petrotechnik wereuided in the Company’s consolidated statement afnre; from its acquisition date through the year

ended January 1, 2011. The difference betweemlagales for the Company and proforma annual $adhsding Petrotechnik as if it were acquired at
the beginning of the year was not material as apmorant of the Compang’consolidated sales for the year ended Janu&@11,. Due to the immater

nature of the acquisition, the Company has nouhetl full year proforma statements of income ferdabquisition year and previous year.

In the first quarter of 2009, the Company addeidstdVater Systems segment by completing the adoprisif 75 percent of the outstanding shares of
Vertical S.p.A. (“Vertical”). Vertical specializen the design, development and manufacture ofspaeand welded stainless steel pumps and pump
components. The Company has a strong global wgastems distribution network and will partner wiflrtical to address the growing worldwide
demand for stainless steel water pumps. Vertaaksvere not material as a component of the Coppannsolidated sales for 2009. Due to the
immaterial nature of the acquisition, the Compaay hot included full year proforma statements obine for the acquisition year and previous year.

The aggregate purchase price for the 75 percent stfid/ertical was €15.0 million, $19.9 million #hie then current exchange rate, subject to certain
terms and conditionsThe fair value of the acquisition was estimatedpplying the income approach and a market apprtwaictentify the total
enterprise value and then the proportionate adgprigpercentage was applied. The Company utilinadagement estimates and consultation with an
independent third-party valuation firm to assisttia valuation.

The aggregate purchase price was allocated tessetsaacquired based on the preliminary fair maridetes. Final market values were determined
within the measurement period. The excess purghése over fair value of the net assets acquis&d} million, was recorded as goodwill, all of wihic
is not deductible for tax purposes. A deferredadjustment of $4.2 million was included in goodwliliring 2009. The results of operations for the
acquisition were included in the Company’s conskd statement of income, from its acquisition dateugh the fiscal year ended 2009.
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The purchase price assigned to each major iddvigfi@sset and liability of Vertical was as follows:

(In millions)
Assets:
Current assets (including cash acqui $ 13.4
Property, plant and equipme 6.2
Intangible asse 11.€
Goodwill 7.4
Total asset $ 38.7
Liabilities (12.7)
Total identifiable net asse $ 26.5
Noncontrolling interes (6.6)
Total purchase price $ 19.€

During 2008, the Company added two pump manufactueeits Water Systems segment. In the first iguanf 2008, the Company completed the
acquisition of Industrias Schneider SA. IndustBasineider is a leading Brazilian producer of pufiopshe residential, agricultural, and light
commercial markets. The acquisition advanced mgany’s strategy to expand its business basevielalging regions where the demand for its
products is rapidly growing. In the second quanfe2008, the Company acquired Western Pumps LMZegtern”) in Fresno, California. Western
designs, develops, and manufactures centrifugapgspecific to the water truck, agricultural iriga, and center pivot industries and was targéted
expand growth on the west coast of the United Stasevell as broaden the Compangtoduct offerings. Industrias Schneider sale®wet material &
a component of the Company’s consolidated sale2G08. On a pro forma annual basis, Western Paites svere not material as a component of the
Company’s consolidated sales for 2008.

The aggregate purchase price for the two acquisitieas $44.1 million. The Western Pump LLC purehegreement provided for additional payments
of 7.5 percent of business net sales for the tvew period ending March 31, 2010. The transactasisand the postosing working capital adjustme
were included in the total purchase accountingutalmns. The Company utilized management estisnabel consultation with an independent third-
party valuation firm to assist in performing itérfanarket valuations in 2008. The aggregate puselmices were allocated to net assets acquiredtibas
on the preliminary fair market values. Final mankalues were determined within the end of the eedpe measurement periods. The excess purchase
price over fair value of the net assets acquiréd,&million, was recorded as goodwill, all of whiis deductible for tax purposes. The results of
operations for the acquisitions were included g @ompany’s consolidated statement of income, fitwgir respective acquisition dates through the
fiscal year ended 2008.

The purchase price assigned to each major assdiaaiiitly of Industrias Schneider was as follows:

(In millions)
Assets:
Current assets (including cash acqui $ 16.2
Property, plant and equipme 11.2
Intangible asse 13.¢
Goodwill 11.1
Other assets 0.1
Total asset $ 52.4
Liabilities (10.9)
Total purchase price $ 42.C

Transaction costs were expensed as incurred uhdeguidance of FASB ASC Topic 8Business CombinationsTransaction costs included in sellit
general, and administrative expense in the Compastgtement of income were $0.6 million and $0.Bonifor the fiscal years ended 2010 and 2009,
respectively. There were no
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acquisition related costs included in selling, gahand administrative expense in the Company’srime statement for the year ended 2008.

4. REDEEMABLE NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

In the first quarter 2009, the Company completedabquisition of 75 percent of Vertical S.p.A. T&epercent noncontrolling interest was recorded at
fair value as of the acquisition date. The nomiaing interest holders have the option, whicleisbedded in the noncontrolling interest, to reztlie
Company to redeem their ownership interests betWwesember 17, 2013 and January 16, 2014. Thepagient upon redemption will be derived
using a specified formula based on an earningsipleifidjusted by the net debt position of Verticalbject to a redemption floor value at the time of
redemption. The combination of a noncontrollingeiest and a redemption feature resulted in a redble noncontrolling interest. The put optionas
separated from the noncontrolling interest as abeglded derivative, because the noncontrolling ésteis not readily convertible to cash.

The noncontrolling interest is redeemable at othan fair value as the redemption value is detegthivased on a specified formula, as described
above. The noncontrolling interest becomes redbeneter the passage of time, and therefore threg@2oy records the carrying amount of the
noncontrolling interest at the greater of 1) thdahcarrying amount, increased or decreasedHemoncontrolling interest’s share of net incoméoes
and its share of other comprehensive income ordodsdividends (“carrying amount”) or 2) the redéimp value which is determined based on the
greater of the redemption floor value or the tharrent specified earnings multiple. According~®SB ASC Topic 810Consolidation, the
redeemable noncontrolling interest was classifigide of permanent equity, as a mezzanine itetidrbalance sheet.

According to the authoritative accounting guidafareredeemable noncontrolling interests issuedhénform of common securities, to the extent that th
noncontrolling interest holder has a contractugthtrto receive an amount upon share redemptiorigtuaher than the fair value of such shares, then
noncontrolling interest holder has, in substaneeeived a dividend distribution that is differerdrh other common shareholders. Therefore, adjuss
to the noncontrolling interest to reflect the regdion amount should be reflected in the computatibearnings per share using the two-class method.
Under the two-class method, the Company has eléotrdat as a dividend only the portion of theigmic redemption value adjustment (if any) that
reflects a redemption value in excess of fair valNe adjustment to the carrying amount of the momolling interest was necessary in 2010 or 2009,
and therefore, no adjustment to the earnings pmestomputation was necessary.

The carrying amount of the redeemable noncontilierest currently approximates its redemptioliea Redemption value adjustments were not
considered material in 2010 and were not requine2D09, and consequently, there were no incremadjastments in the earnings per share
computation.

5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC Topic 825Financial Instruments provides a framework for measuring fair value emglenerally accepted accounting principles. Faline

is defined as the exchange price that would beveddor an asset or paid to transfer a liabilay exit price) in the principal or most advantageou
market for the asset or liability in an orderlyrtsaction between market participants on the measnedate. Disclosures about instruments meastired &
fair value were expanded and a fair value hieramhigh requires an entity to maximize the use afavbable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value gtabéished. The standard describes three leveigpafs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — Quoted prices for identical assets aailities in active markets;

Level 2 —Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilitiesdtive markets; quoted prices for identical orikimassets and liabilities in markets that are
active; and model-derived valuations in which ahéficant inputs and significant value drivers afeservable in active markets; and

Level 3 — Valuations derived from valuation techrég in which one or more significant inputs or gigant value drivers are unobservable.
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The Company designates the cash equivalents as 1.exg they are Money Market accounts generaltked by Treasury Bills with fund prices readily
observable. As of January 1, 2011, and Janua2@10), assets measured at fair value on a recurdsig were as follows:

Quoted price:

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
January 1, Assets Inputs Inputs
(In millions) 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash Equivalent $ 20 % 20 % - % -
Quoted prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
January 2, Assets Inputs Inputs
2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash Equivalent $ 111 % 111 % - 3 -

The following table summarizes information regagdihe Company’s non-financial assets measuredratdlue on a non-recurring basis:

Quoted prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Recognized
January 1, 201 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Loss
Assets held for sal $ 23 % - % - % 23 % 2.4

During the second quarter of 2010, the Companyrdezbthe impairment as a restructuring expenseaapepty, plant, and equipment relating to the
Siloam Springs facility which is classified as h&dd sale. The fair value was based on appraisétbs and management estimates less costs tdSee
Note 19 (Restructuring) for discussion of the ngdring plans

6. EQUITY INVESTMENTS

The Company holds a 35 percent equity interestand&r Pump, Inc., which is accounted for usingefeity method and included in “Other assets” on
the consolidated balance sheet. The carrying atrafuhe investment is adjusted for the Company&pprtionate share of earnings, losses, and
dividends. The carrying value of the investmens %8&.8 million as of January 1, 2011, and $7.7iomilks of January 2, 2010. The Company’s
proportionate share of Pioneer Pump, Inc. earningkjded in “Other income/(expense)” in the Comparstatements of income, was $1.0 million, $0.1
million and $0.7 million, for 2010, 2009, and 2008spectively.

7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company uses the purchase method of accoubtimgisiness combinations. Annual goodwill impamtesting and trade name impairment
testing is performed during the fourth quarter a¢teyear; unless events or circumstances indieatieeimpairment testing is required. No impairmen
loss was recognized for 2010, 2009, or 2008.
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The carrying amounts of the Company’s intangibketswere as follows:

(In millions) 2010 2009

Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Amortized intangibles
Patents $7.9 ($4.8) $8.0 ($4.3)
Supply agreemen 4.4 (3.9) 7.2 (6.2)
Technology 7.5 (2.2) 7.2 2.7)
Customer relationshig 70.7 (13.1) 68.2 (9.5)
Other 1.1 (1.1) 2.1 (2.0)
Total amortized intangibles 91.6 (25.1) 92.7 (23.7)
Unamortized intangbile:
Trade names 22.5 - 19.¢ -
Total intangbiles $114.1 $(25.1 $112.¢ $(23.7
The weighted average number of years over which gdangible class is amortized is as follows:
Class Years
Patents 17
Supply agreemen 6
Technology 15
Customer relationshig 17- 20
Other 8

Amortization expense related to intangible assmt§ical years 2010, 2009, and 2008, was $4.6anijl$5.1 million, and $4.7 million, respectively.
Amortization expense for each of the five succeggigars is projected as follows:

(In millions) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Amortization expens $ 52 % 48 % 4€ $ 4€ $ 4.€

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill byarting segment for 2010 and 2009 was as follows:

2010
(In millions) Water Fueling Total
Balance as of January 2, 2C $ 108« $ 534 % 161.¢
Acquired - 3.t 3.5
Adjustments to prior year acquisitio - 1.3 2
Foreign currency translation (1.4 - (1.4
Balance as of January 1, 2011 $ 107.C $ 58.2 165.2
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2009

(In millions) Water Fueling Total

Balance as of January 3, 2C $ 9.t $ 51€¢ $ 148.1
Acquired 7.4 - 7.4
Adjustments to prior year acquisitio (0.3 1.8 1kt
Foreign currency translation 4.8 - 4.8
Balance as of January 2, 2010 $ 1082 $ 534 $ 161.¢

The 2010 acquired goodwill in the Fueling Systeegnsent related to the Company’s acquisition ofdethnik. The 2009 acquired goodwill in the
Water Systems segment was primarily related tcCibrpany’s acquisition of Vertical S.p.A.

The 2006 purchase agreement for Healy Systemsd®dvor additional payments of 5 percent of certédaly Systems product sales through
2011. Adjustments to prior year acquisitions prifganclude those contingency commitments to Hegystems, Inc.

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Benefit Plans -As of January 1, 2011, the Company maintains tboeeestic pension plans and three German pensios.plde Company
used a December 31 measurement date for these plans

The following table sets forth aggregated informiatielated to the Company’s pension benefits ahdrgiostretirement benefits, including changes in
the benefit obligations, changes in plan assetgldd status, amounts recognized in the Balance Straeunts recognized in Other Accumulated
Comprehensive Income, and actuarial assumptionsitta&Company considered in its determination ofefié obligations and plan costs:

(In millions)
Pension Benefit Other Benefits
2010 2009 2010 2009

Accumulated benefit obligation, end of year $ 165.C $ 157.¢ 3 128 % 13.C
Change in benefit obligatiol

Projected benefit obligation, beginning of y $ 1642 $ 145¢ $ 13.C $ 11.¢€
Service cos 2.6 3.1 0.1 0.1
Interest cos 8.6 9.7 0.7 0.8
Actuarial loss 7.€ 15.7 & 14
Benefits paic (11.¢) (10.5) 1.3 1.2
Liability (gain)/loss due to curtailment* 0.8 - 0.3 -
Foreign currency exchange (0.8 0.2 - -
Projected benefit obligation, end of yt $ 171¢ $ 1642 $ 128 $ 13.C
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Change in plan asse

Fair value of assets, beginning of y
Actual return on plan asse
Company contribution

Employee contribution

Settlements pai

Benefits paic

Foreign currency exchange

Plan assets, end of year

Funded status

Amounts Recognized in Balance She
Noncurrent asse

Deferred tax ass

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Net pension liability, end of yei

Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehenkicome
Net Transition Obligatiol

Prior Service Cos

Net Actuarial Los:

Total Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehenisigeme

$ 1007 $ 872 $ -3 -
13.C 19. -

14. 4.4 1.2 1.2

(11.6) (105 $ 13 $ 1.2)

(0.4) 0.1 - )

$ 1160 $ 100.; $ - 3 -

(55.€) (63.5) (12.5) (13.0)

$ - $ - $ - % -

22.C 212 0.¢ 1.

(0.3) (1.7) (1.2) (1.2)

(55.5) (62.4) (11.9) (11.§)

$ (33.5 $ 425 $ (1.6 $ (12.0)

$ -3 -3 02 $ 0.4

0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

36. 35.1 1. 1.

$ 37 $ 354 $ 15 3 1.7

**  These items are related to the headcount réoluat the Siloam Springs, Arkansas facility assiec

with the current realignment plan.

The following table sets forth Other Changes imPasets and Benefit Obligation Recognized in O®@mprehensive Income for 2010 and 2009:

(In millions)

Net actuarial (gain)/los
Amortization of:
Net actuarial gain/(los
Prior service cost/(cred
Transition (asset)/obligatic
Deferred tax asset

Total recognized in other comprehensive incc

Pension Benefit

Other Benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009
$ 56 $ 6€ $ 01 $ 1.4
(3.0 () = =

0.2) 0.9 (0.7) (0.7)

- = 0.3 (0.2

0.8) (2.4) 0.1 (0.4)

$ 1€ $ 36 $ 02 $ 0.7
6.2 $ 6.6 $ 1.0 $ 1.

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost atitkocomprehensive income $

Assumptions used to determine domestic benefigabtins:

Discount rate
Rate of increase in future compensal

Pension Benefit

Other Benefits
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2010 2009 2010 2009
5.25% 5.75% 5.0(% 5.5(%
3.0C-8.0(% 3.0(-8.0(% 3.0(-8.0(% 3.0(-8.0(%
(Graded (Graded (Graded (Graded




Assumptions used to determine domestic periodiefitecost:

Pension Benefit Other Benefits
2010 2009 2010 2009
Discount rate 5.7% 6.9(% 5.5(% 6.9(%
Rate of increase in future compensai 3.0(-8.0(% 3.0(-8.0(% 3.0(-8.0(% 3.0(-8.0(%
(Graded (Graded (Graded (Graded
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 8.5(% 8.5(% - -

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Compamyialified and German defined benefit pensionglaas $158.0 million and $151.6 million for the
years ended 2010 and 2009.

The following table sets forth the aggregated metqalic benefit cost for 2010, 2009, and 2008:

(In millions)
Pension Benefit Other Benefits
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Service cos $ 29 % 31 % 3€ $ 01 $ 01 $ 0.1
Interest cos 8.¢ 9.7 8.8 0.7 0.8 0.8
Expected return on asst (20.2 (10.9) (10.¢) - - -
Amortization of transition obligatio - - - 0.2 0.2 0.2
Prior service cos 0.2 0.4 0.€ - 0.1 0.1
Loss 1.8 0.1 0.1 - - -
Net periodic benefit co: $ 3€ $ 3C % 232 % 1C $ 1.2 % 1.2
Curtailment** 0.8 - 1kt 0.2 - 0.t
Settlement cost 0.3 - 0.t - - -
Total net periodic benefit cost $ 47 $ 3C $ 43 % 1.2 8 1.2 8 1.8

** These items are related to the headcount redoat the Siloam Springs, Arkansas facility asgediavith the current realignment plan.

The estimated net actuarial (gain)/loss, prior isereost/(credit), and transition (asset)/obligatioeat will beamortized from accumulated other comp
into net periodic benefit cost during the 2011 disgear are
$3.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.0 million, resgaely, for the pension plans and $0.1 million, Billion, and $0.2nillion respectively, for all other

The Company has consulted with a third party inwesit manager for the funded domestic defined beplein assetsThe plan assets are currently ir
in pooled funds, where each fund in turn is comgafemutual funds
that have at least daily net asset valuations. Thei€ompany’s funded domestic defined benefit plssets are invested in a “fund of funds” approach.

The Company’s Board has delegated oversight ardhguoe to an appointed Employee Benefits Commitide Committee has the tasks of reviewin
performance and asset allocation; ensuring plamptiance with applicable
laws; establishing plan policies, procedures, amdrols; monitoring expenses; and other relateiyities.

The plans’ investment policies and strategies fazuthe ability to fund benefit obligations as tleeyne due. Considerations include the plaastent f
plan design, benefit payment assumptions, fundégglations,

impact of potentially volatile business resultstbe Company’s ability to make certain levels of tciutions, andnterest rate and asset return volatil
considerations. The Company currently attemptsamtain plan

funded status at approximately 80 percent or gre@igen the plan’s current funded status, the Camyfs cash omand, cash historically generated f
operations, and cash available under committedtdiilities, the

Company sees ample liquidity to achieve this goal.

Risk management and continuous monitoring requingsn@e met through monthly investment portfolipaits,quarterly Employee Benefits Commit
annual valuations, asset/liability studies, arelahnual
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assumption process focusing primarily on the returrasset assumption and the discount rate assampAis ofJanuary 1, 2011, funds were investec
income and other investments as follows:

Equity
o U.S. Large Cap 409
0 U.S. Small / Mid Cap 7%
o World Equity e-U.S. 16%
] Subtotal 63%
Fixed Income
0 U.S. Core Fixed Income 24%
0 High Yield Fixed Income 3%
o Emerging Markets Debt _3%
= Subtotal 30%
Other
o Franklin Electric Stock 2%
0 Insurance Contracts 5%
TOTAL 100%

The Company does not see any particular concemtrafirisk within the plans, nor any plan asset ffose difficulties for fair value assessment. The
Company currently has no allocation to potentidliguid or potentially difficult to value assetsish as hedge funds, venture capital, private egaity
real estate.

The Company works with actuaries and consultanisaking its determination of the asset rate ofrreasssumption and also the discount rate
assumption.

Asset class assumptions are set using a combinatiempirical and forward-looking analysis for leteym rate of return on plan assets. A variety of
models are applied for filtering historical datalasolating the fundamental characteristics of eslssses. These models provide empirical return
estimates for each asset class, which are theewedi and combined with a qualitative assessmdohgfterm relationships between asset classes
a return estimate is finalized. This provides dditonal means for correcting for the effect ofealistic or unsustainable short-term valuations or
trends, opting instead for return levels and bedvaiat is more likely to prevail over long periodd/ith that, the Company has assumed an expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets of 8.25qmrfor the 2011 net periodic benefit cost. Thithie result of stochastic modeling showing thé50
percentile median return at or above 8.25 percent.

The Company uses the Hewitt Top Quartile curvegtemnine the discount rate. Basically all caslvfabligations under the plans are matched to b
in the Hewitt Top Quartile of liquid, high-qualitppon-callable / non-putable corporate bonds witthens removed. From that matching exercise, a
discount rate is determined. Recent volatility iedit markets prompted the Company to comparetesiithis method to results using another curve
constructed by another source, the Citi Above Medarve, and similar results were observed.

The Company’s German pension plans are fundedsawamce contract policies whereby the insurancepeomguarantees a fixed minimum
return. Due to tax legislation, individual penstmenefits can only be financed using direct inscegpolicies up to certain maximums. These maximum
amounts in respect of each member are paid into an@rrangement on a yearly basis.

The Company designated the domestic plan asseéevat1, as they are mutual funds and Company stgitkprices that are readily available. The
German plan assets are designated as Level 2 iaptit® fair value of the insurance contracts iasueed by the reserve that is supervised by the
German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority.
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The fair values of the Company’s pension plan aseet2010 and 2009 by asset category are as fsilow

Quoted prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(In millions) 2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equity U.S. Large Ca| $ 46.4 $ 46.4 $ - % =
U.S. Small/Mid Cay 8.2 8.2 - -
World Equity e-U.S. 18.C 18.C - -
Stock Franklin Electric Co., Inc 1. 1.
Fixed Income U.S. Core Fixed Incom 28.1 28.1 - -
High Yield Fixed Income 3.7 3.7 - -
Emerging Markets Det 3.7 3.7 - -
Other Insurance Contrac 5.€ - 5.€ -
Cash and Equivalents 0.8 0.8 - -
Total $ 116.C $ 1104 $ 56 $ -
Quoted prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(In millions) 2009 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equity U.S. Large Cay $ 40.C $ 40.C $ - $ =
U.S. Small/Mid Cay 6.8 6.8 - -
World Equity e-U.S. 155 155 - -
Stock Franklin Electric Co., Inc 1.1 1.1
Fixed Income U.S. Core Fixed Incom 24.¢ 24.¢ - -
High Yield Fixed Income 3.1 3.1 - -
Emerging Markets Det 35 35 - -
Other Insurance Contrac 5.€ - 5.€ -
Cash and Equivalents 0.8 0.8 - -
Total $ 100.7 $ 95.1 $ 56 $ -

Equity securities include Company stock of $1.5ioml (1.3 percent of total plan assets) and $1liani(1.1 percent of total plan assets) at yeat en
2010 and 2009, respectively.

One of the Company’s pension plans covers onhagerhanagement employees. The Company does nottiisglan, and its assets were zero in 2010
and 2009. The plan’s projected benefit obligatind accumulated benefit obligation were $7n2illion and $6.9 million, respectively, for 201&$6."
million and $6.2 million, respectively, for 2009.

The Company estimates total contributions to tl@plof $16.1 million in 2011.

The following benefit payments, which reflect exigetfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée fmaid:

(In millions) Pensior Other
Benefits Benefits

2011 $ 108 $ 1.2
2012 10.7 1.1
2013 13.2 1.1
2014 13.t 1.1
2015 13t 1.C
Years 2016 through 20z 61.2 5.1
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The Company’s other postretirement benefit plansige health and life insurance benefits to donsestiployees hired prior to 1992. The Company
effectively capped its cost for those benefits tigto plan amendments made in 1992, freezing Comgamiyibutions for insurance benefits at 1991
levels for current and future beneficiaries wittuacially reduced benefits for employees who rdieéore age 65.

Defined Contribution Plans - The Company maintained a 401(k) Plan and an Eyepl&tock Ownership Plan (ESOP) during 2010. A&ugfust 5,
2010 the ESOP was merged into the 401(k) Plan.ESIDP balances were transferred into the Frankéiotic Common Stock investment within the
401(k) Plan. The Company's cash contributionsraade to participants' accounts based on investeiections.

The following table sets forth Company contribuidon the ESOP and 401(k) Plans.

(In millions)
2010 2009 2008
Company contributions to the pl. $ 17 8 0c $ 1.8
9. ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses consist of:
(In millions) 2010 2009
Salaries, wages, and commissil $ 254 $ 13.7
Product warranty cos 9.4 8.8
Insurance & 4.2
Employee benefit 6.2 5.2
Healy and Western Pump additional purchase | 7.C 4.€
Other 12.4 7.7
$ 647 $ 44.:
10. INCOME TAXES
Income before income taxes consistec
(In millions)
2010 2009 2008
Domestic $ 44 $ 0t $ 28.€
Foreign 50.7 38.4 39.C
$ 55.1 $ 38<L $ 67.€
The income tax provision consisted of:
(In millions)
2010 2009 2008
Current payable
Federa $ 45 $ 44 $ @.7
Foreign 9.t 8.1 12.C
State 0.5 1.2 0.2
Deferred:
Federa 2.4 (2.3 11.¢
Foreign 5.C 11 (1.7)
State 2.2 (0.3 1.7
$ 151 $ 122 $ 22.¢
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Significant components of the Company's deferredtsets and liabilities were as follows:

(In millions)

Deferred tax asset

Accrued expenses and reser
Compensation and employee bene

Other items

Valuation allowance on state deferred tax
Total deferred tax asse

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated depreciation on fixed ass
Amortization of intangible:

Other items

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax asse

The portions of current and non-current deferredassets and liabilities were as follows:

(In millions)

Current
Non-current

U.S. Federal statutory ra

State income taxes, net of federal ber

Foreign operation
R&D tax credits
Other items

Uncertain tax positions adjustmel
State deferred tax rate adjustme
Valuation allowance on state deferred tax

Effective tax rate

2010 2009

$ 130 $ 9.2
29.€ 34.7
11. 10.C
54.1 53.¢
(CX) -
50.7 53.¢
11.4 12.4
26.4 18.C
12.C 11.2
49 41€

$ 0.c $ 12.2

2010 2009
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
$ 22¢6 $ 4C $ 182 % 2.7
27.¢ 45.¢ 35.¢ 38.¢
$ 50.7 $ 496 $ 53¢ $ 41.¢
2010 2009 2008
35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
0.t 1.€ 1.¢
(5.9 (5.2 (1.2)
0.5 (1.2) (0.7)
0.8 0.3 (0.7
(5.4) 0.8 (0.9
(2.9 = =
6.1 - -
27.4% 31.2% 33.%%

The Company recorded adjustments in 2010 for uaicetax positions relating, for which the statutdimitations has expired, relating to acquisitions
occurring prior to 2010 for which indemnificatioraw/provided for in the respective purchase agretsndrhe tax liability was reversed to the income
tax provision, a benefit of $2.9 million and thelémnification asset was reserved and recorde®iher income/(expense)” in the Company’s
statements of income. The Company also made auuss to the state deferred tax rates due to damestructuring, a benefit of $1.6 million inclut

in the 2010 income tax provision.

The operations realignment to foreign jurisdictionbich is generating foreign tax benefits, alsduees the domestic taxable income in some of the
Company’s US jurisdictions. The Company is notlykto realize the benefit of a portion of the neteml deferred tax asset relating to state tax#éein
foreseeable future. As such, a valuation allowamas recorded of $3.4 million.




The Company considers earnings from Germany, Theedands, Mexico, Italy, and a portion of Southiéd to be indefinitely reinvested.
Approximately $8.0 million of South Africa’'s unréted earnings are considered indefinitely reingdstThe Company identified the accumulated
earnings for the affiliates that were not indeBhjtreinvested and computed the tax associatedthdtisubsequent repatriation. This computation
considered the impact of applicable withholdingesaand the availability of U.S. foreign tax credithe Company has calculated the repatriationlof al
the accumulated earnings that are not indefiniteilyvested which resulted in a net tax liability$®.8 million recorded by the Company.

11. ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES

As of the beginning of fiscal year 2010, the Comphad gross unrecognized tax benefits of $6.8 anijlexcluding accrued interest and penalties. The
unrecognized tax benefits were reduced by $0.4anifor state income tax liabilities and $3.5 naitlifor federal tax liabilities, while increasing.40
million for federal tax liabilities based on evatioms made during 2010. The Company had groscagrézed tax benefits, excluding accrued interest
and penalties, of $3.6 million as of January 1,1201

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofngross unrecognized tax benefits for 2010 (edicly interest and penalties) is as follows:

(In millions) 2010 2009 2008

Beginning balanc $ 6.€ $ 6.€ $ 2.C
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeai 0.1 1.C 2.6
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 0.2 0.8 2.6
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei (3.6) 1.9 0.7)
Settlements - - (0.3
Ending balance $ 3€ $ 6.8 $ 6.€

If recognized, the effective tax rate would be etiéel by the net unrecognized tax benefits of $3lom Of the unrecognized tax benefits, $1.0lroi

are related to acquisitions occurring prior to 2@diOwhich indemnification was provided for in thespective purchase agreements. Indemnification
assets of $2.9 million were reversed and recondé@ther income/(expense)” in the Company’s stateimef income. The stock purchase agreements
related to these acquisitions provide the Compaghis to recover tax liabilities related to pre-aisifion tax years from the sellers. Other amowanés
associated with domestic state tax issues, sunobass, as well as other federal and state uncegaipositions.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesecktatunrecognized tax benefits in income tax egpemhe Company has accrued interest and
penalties as of January 1, 2011, January 2, 20tDJanuary 3, 2009 of approximately $0.4 milliod, Zmillion, and $0.4 million, respectively. Inst
and penalties recorded during 2010 related todberfl and state tax positions.

The Company is subject to periodic audits by doioestd foreign tax authorities. Currently, the Gramy is undergoing routine periodic audits in both
domestic and foreign tax jurisdictions. It is r@aably possible that the amounts of unrecognizedhémefits could change in the next twelve monthg
result of the audits. Based on the current auisocess, the payment of taxes as a result of setflements could be from $0.4 to $0.8 million.

For the majority of tax jurisdictions, the Compasyo longer subject to U.S. federal, state andl|ar non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax
authorities for years before 2007.

12. DEBT

On December 14, 2006, the Company entered intoremded and restated unsecured, 60-month $120i@mmiévolving credit agreement (the
“Agreement”).The Agreement provides for various borrowing rgtdams including interest rates based on the Lordterbank Offered Rates (LIBO
plus interest spreads keyed to the Company’s ddititebt to earnings before interest, taxes, deatieci, and amortization (“EBITDA”). The
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Agreement contains certain financial covenants watpect to borrowings, interest coverage, loareslsances and investments. The Company was in
compliance with the covenants as of January 1, 20tilJanuary 2, 2010. The Company had zero bargsainder the Agreement at January 1, 2011
and January 2, 2010.

On April 9, 2007, the Company entered into the Adezhand Restated Note Purchase and Private Shedégnt (the "Prudential Agreement") in the
amount of $175.0 million. Under the Prudential Agrent, the Company issued notes in an aggregaiigal amount of $110.0 million on April 30,
2007 (the “B-1 Notes”) and $40.0 million on SeptemB, 2007 (the “B-2 Notes”). The B-1 and B-2 Ndbesir a coupon of 5.79 percent and have an
average life of ten years with a final maturity2i@19. On July 22, 2010 the Company entered imme#dment No. 3 to the Prudential Agreement to
increase its borrowing capacity by $25 million. @sJanuary 1, 2011, the Company has $50 milliamdwaing capacity available under the Prudential
Agreement. Principal installments of $30.0 milliare payable annually commencing on April 30, 288 continuing to and including April 30, 2019,
with any unpaid balance due at maturity. The PrtideAgreement contains certain financial covenavith respect to borrowings, interest coverage,
loans or advances and investments. The Companynveasnpliance with the covenants as of Janua®011 and January 2, 2010.

The Company also has certain overdraft faciliticissforeign subsidiaries, of which none were tanding at January 1, 2011 and January 2, 2010.

Long-term debt consisted ¢

(In millions) 2010 2009
Prudential Agreemer- 5.79 percent $ 150.C $ 150.(
Capital Lease 0.7 1.2
Other 1.8 0.7
152.t 151.¢
Less Current Maturities (1.3 (0.7)
Long-term debt: $ 1512 3 151.2
The following debt payments are expected to be:paid
(In millions) More than
Total 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 5 years
Debt $ 151¢ $ 0e $ 04 $ 0z $ 0z $ 30z $ 120.(
Capital Leases $ 0.7 0.5 0.2 - - - -
$ 1525 $ 1.2 3 0.€ $ 02 $ 0z $ 30z $ 120.(

13. INTEREST RATE RISK

On September 24, 2003 the Company entered inteed-tovariable interest rate swap to achieve a desireggstion of variable vs. fixed rate debt. -
fixed-to-variable interest rate swap was accoufteads a fair value hedge, with effectiveness assbbased on changes in the fair value of the
underlying debt using incremental borrowing ratesilable on loans with similar terms and maturitif$ie gain or loss on the interest rate swap hat
of the underlying debt were equal and offsettirguténg in no net effect to earnings.

The swap contract had a notional amount of $10onikind matured on November 10, 2008 and was netwed. Per the terms of the swap contract the
Company received interest at a fixed rate of 6 &Tgnt and paid interest at a variable rate basdtdree month LIBOR plus a spread. The average
variable rate paid by the Company in 2008 was pe&f@ent. The differential in interest rates onghvap was recognized as an adjustment of interest
expense over the term of the swap.

14. SHAREOWNERS'EQUITY
The Company had 23,257,170 shares of common s6&c8F0,000 shares authorized, $.10 par value)andstg at the end of 2010.
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During 2010, 2009, and 2008, pursuant to a stogirmhase program authorized by the Company’s BegRirectors, the Company repurchased and
retired the following amounts and number of shares:

(Amounts in millions, except share amounts)

2010 2009 2008
Repurchase $ 6 $ - % 7.8
Shares 226,48 - 235,10(

Of the 2010 repurchases, 68,587 shares were pectiirag privately negotiated transaction. The pase price for the shares was determined pursuant
to the Stock Redemption Agreement as the averatfeedfighest and lowest closing price over ther®dtrading days.

In 2010, the Company retired 12,255 shares that wereived by employees as payment for taxes owed the exercise of their stock options and
release of their restricted awards. The Compasty itired 1,485 shares that had been previoualyted as a stock award to employees, but were
forfeited upon termination. In 2009, the Compaetjred 14,403 shares that were received by empsogeg@ayment for taxes owed upon the release of
their restricted awards. During 2008, the Compatiyed 700 shares that had been previously graagedstock award to an employee, but were
forfeited upon termination. As well, the Compastined 106 shares that were received by employgesaymnent for taxes owed upon the release of
restricted awards.

In 2010, 2009, and 2008, the Company recorded ®ili®n, $0.1 million, and $0.9 million, respectiyeas a reduction in tax liability and an incretse
shareowners’ equity as a result of stock optiorr@ses.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),istatsof the currency translation adjustment aredpnsion liability adjustment, $19.1 million and
($38.5) million, respectively, as of January 1, P@hd $18.4 million and ($37.1) million, respeclyyeat January 2, 2010.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table sets forth the computation abic and diluted earnings per share:

(In millions, except per share amour

2010 2009 2008
Numerator:
Net income attributable to Franklin Electric Cam¢l $ 39.C $ 26.C $ 44 1
Denominator
Basic
Weighted average common sha 23.2 23.1 23.C
Diluted
Effect of dilutive securities
Employee and director incentive stock optiand awards 0.2 0.2 0.2
Adjusted weighted average common shares 23.5 23.8 23.2
Basic earnings per shg $ 166 $ 1.1z % 1.9z
Diluted earnings per sha $ 166 $ 11z $ 1.9C
Anti-dilutive stock option: 0.8 1.C 0.8
Anti-dilutive stock options price ran« low $ 2882 % 299t % 32.1¢
Anti-dilutive stock options price rane high $ 4881 $ 4887 $ 48.8
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16. SHAREBASED COMPENSATION

On April 24, 2009, the Amended and Restated Frariklectric Co., Inc. Stock Plan (the “Stock Plawgs approved by the Company’s

shareholders. Under the Stock Plan, employeesiangmployee directors may be granted stock optioresvards. The Stock Plan amended and
restated the then-existing stock plan to, amongrdtiings, increase the number of shares avaifabissuance from 1,300,000 to 2,200,000 shares as
follows:

Authorized Share
Options 1,600,00!
Awards 600,00(

The Company currently issues new shares from itsneon stock balance to satisfy option exercises utideStock Plan and a similar, prior plan and
stock awards under the Stock Plan.

The total share-based compensation expense reedgni2010, 2009, and 2008 was $4.3 million, $5illan, and $3.7 million, respectively.

Stock Options
Under the above plans, the exercise price of eptibroequals the market price of the Company’s comstock on the date of grant and the options

expire ten years after the date of the grant. @digeoptions granted to non-employee directorst 33 1/3 percent a year and become fully vested an
exercisable after three years. Options granteufriiployees vest at 20 or 25 percent a year and leefidiy vested and exercisable after five yearfoar
years, respectively. Subject to the terms of taag in general, the aggregate option price agchaplicable tax withholdings may be satisfied &slc

or its equivalent, by the plan participant’s detivef shares of the Company’s common stock havifgjranarket value at the time of exercise equal to
the aggregate option price and/or the applicalevithholdings or, under the Stock Plan, by havshgres otherwise subject to the award withheld by
the Company or via cash-less exercise through leebrdealer.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optiaination model with a single approach and
amortized using a straight-line attribution metloa@r the option’s vesting period. Options grarttedetirement eligible employees are immediately
expensed. The Company uses historical data tmastithe expected volatility of its stock; the weegl average expected life, the period of timeamysti
granted are expected to be outstanding; and itdetid yield. The riskree rates for periods within the contractual bfehe option are based on the |
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of tharg.

The assumptions used for the Black-Scholes modi#¢termine the fair value of options granted du26d@0, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Risk-free interest rat 1.61-3.2(% 0.70- 3.55% 2.91-3.1%%
Dividend yield 0.65-1.72% 1.32-2.0&% 1.11-1.12%
Weighte-average dividend yiel 0.95(% 1.67(% 1.11%
0.3550- 0.3766— 0.3552
Volatility factor 0.398( 0.547¢ 0.371¢
Weighte(-average volatility 0.396( 0.398: 0.369:
Expected tern 6.3 year 5.6 year 5.C-6.0 year
Forfeiture rate 2.7(% 2.58% 3.61%
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A summary of the Company’s stock option plans égtiand related information is as follows:

(Shares in thousands)

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average Aggregate

Remaining

Intrinsic

Stock Options Shar Exercise Prict Contractual Tern Value (00(s)

Outstanding at beginning of 20 1,252 $29.99

Granted 34 32.45

Exercisec (14 23.45

Forfeited (1 39.15

Outstanding at beginning of 20 1,439 $31.17

Granted 6¢€ 17.34

Exercisec (3t 18.49

Forfeited (8 28.28

Outstanding at beginning of 20 1,979 $26.84

Granted 157 29.03

Exercisec (271) 18.63

Forfeited (48) 35.64

Outstanding at end of period 1,817 $27.95 5.64 $22.09:

Expected to vest after applying forfeiture rate 1,797 $28.02 5.61 $21,73¢

Vested and exercisable at end of period 1,103 $30.89 4,07 $10,76¢
2010 2009 2008

Weighted average gré-date fair value of option $6.29 $5.64 $11.64

(In millions)

Intrinsic value of options exercisi $3.9 $0.4 $2.9

Cash received from the exercise of opti 5.0 0.7 3.4

Fair value of shares vest 4.2 2.8 4.0

Tax benefil 13 0.1 0.9

There were no share-based liabilities paid durireg2010 and 2009 fiscal years.
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A summary of the Company’s nonvested stock optiivity and related information follows:

Weighted-
Average
Grant-
(Shares in thousands) Date Fair
Shares Value
Nonvested at beginning of 20 53¢ $ 37.0¢
Granted 66E 17.3¢
Vested (225) 36.7(
Forfeited (66) 24.6¢
Nonvested at beginning of 20 91C $ 23.62
Granted 157 29.0:
Vested (342) 25.9¢
Forfeited (11 23.4z2
Nonvested at end of peric 714 $ 23.4C

As of January 1, 2011 there was $3.5 million cdtoirecognized compensation cost related to netedeshare-based compensation arrangements
granted under the plans related to stock optiditsat cost is expected to be recognized over a waiighverage period of 1.99 years.

Stock Awards
Under the Stock Plan, non-employee directors anpl@yees may be granted stock awards, includingtgmfirestricted shares of the Company’s
common stock.

Stock awards to non-employee directors are fulbte# when made. Stock awards to employees cBff eeer either 1, 4 or 5 years and may be
contingent on the attainment of certain performagaas. Dividends are paid to the recipient priovésting, except that dividends on performance-
based stock awards under the Stock Plan will be @aly to the extent the performance goals are r8&ick awards granted to retirement eligible
employees were immediately expensed in 2010 anél.200

A summary of the Company’s restricted stock awatd/gly and related information follows:

Weighted-
Average
Grant-
(Shares in thousands) Date Fair
Shares Value
Nonvested at beginning of 20 63 $ 44.0¢
Awarded 88 19.04
Vested (75) 18.41
Forfeited 4) 48.5¢
Nonvested at beginning of 20 72 % 39.8¢
Awarded 101 29.8¢
Vested (44) 41.61
Forfeited @) 32.8¢
Nonvested at end of peric 12¢ $ 31.8¢

As of January 1, 2011, there was $2.3 million ¢éftanrecognized compensation cost related to remted share-based compensation arrangements
granted under the Stock Plan related to stock esvarthat cost is expected to be recognized ovezighted-average period of 2.5 years.

17. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Company’s business consists of the followinmpreable segments, based on the principal end msekeed: Water Systems and Fueling Systems.
The Company includes unallocated corporate exsess@ inter-company eliminations in an “Other” segirthat together with Water and Fueling
represent the Company.
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The Water Systems segment designs, manufacturesetiaanotors, pumps, electronic controls and eelgiarts and equipment primarily for use in
submersible water and other fluid system applicetid he Fueling Systems segment designs, manugagcamd sells pumps, electronic controls and
related parts and equipment primarily for use ipnsersible fueling system applications. The Fuefiygtems segment integrates and sells motors and
electronic controls produced by the Water Systezgsnent.

The accounting policies of our operating segmergdtee same as those described in Note 1 (Summ&iguificant Accounting Policies). Performance
is evaluated based on the sales and operating mobthe segments and a variety of ratios to megserformance. These results are not necessarily
indicative of the results of operations that woliédve occurred had each segment been an indepestdertt;alone entity during the periods presented.

Financial information by reportable business sedrigeimcluded in the following summary:

(In millions)
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Net sales to external custom: Operating income (los:
Water System $583.: $504.¢ $557.( $84.1 $60.Z $68.4
Fueling System $130.t $121.C $188.¢ $17.¢ $20.¢ $49.¢
Other $ = $ = $ = ($37.4 ($33.1 ($41.1

Total asset Depreciatior
Water System $450.2 $431.¢ $16.2 $17.€ $16.7
Fueling System $221.: $279.¢ $1.4 $1.2 $1.1
Other $108.¢ $ 6.t $ 1.¢ $1.4 $1.7

Amortization Capital Expenditure

Water System $3.2 $3.2 $2.€ $10.¢ $9.5 $17.€
Fueling System $1.4 $1.€ $1.¢ $0.1 $0.2 $2.7
Other $ - $ - $ - $1.¢ $4.1 $6.€

Cash is the major asset group in “Other” of totseds. Prior year amounts have been reclassifiedrtform to current segment presentation.

Total Company Geographic Information

(In millions) Net Sales Long-lived asset:

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009
United State! $319.¢ $279.C $392.1 $258.t $266.¢
Foreign 393.¢ 347.C 353.E 150.¢ 140.2
Total $713.¢ $626.( $745.€ $409.¢ $406.7

No single customer accounted for more than 10 pefethe Compar’s consolidated sales in 2010, 2009, or 2008.

18. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

In August 2010, the California Air Resources Bo@f@ARB”) filed a civil complaint in the Los AngeleSuperior Court against the Company and
Franklin Fueling Systems, Inc. (a wholly-owned sdiasy of the Company). The complaint relates thied-party-supplied component part of the
Company’s Healy 900 Series nozzle, which is pathefCompany’s Enhanced Vapor Recovery (“‘EVR”) 8yt installed in California gasoline filling
stations. This part, a diaphragm, was the sulgjeatretrofit during the first half of 2008. AsgtlCompany has previously
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reported, in October 2008 CARB issued a Notice iofation to the Company alleging that the circumsts leading to the retrofit program violated
California statutes and regulations. The Compard/@ARB have worked since 2008 to resolve the digrin matter without court action, but were
unable to reach agreement.

The claims in the complainimirror those that CARB presented to the ComparthénNotice of Violation, and include claims tha¢ tBompany
negligently and intentionally sold nozzles with adified diaphragm without required CARB certificati The Company believes that, throughout the
period to which the complaint relates, it actediilhcooperation with CARB and in the best intesest CARB'’s vapor emissions control

program. Although the complaint seeks penaltiest déast $25 million, it is the Company’s positibiat there is no reasonable basis for penaltigsief
amount.

In addition, as the Company has previously repotteel Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Managetri@istrict (“SMAQMD”) issued a Notice of
Violation to the Company concerning the diaphragaiter in March 2008. Discussions with that agesiogut the circumstances leading to the retrofit
in its jurisdiction and the resolution of the aggsaoncerns did not result in agreement, and ineévicber 2010 SMAQMD filed a civil complaint in the
Sacramento Superior Court, mirroring the claimsighd by CARB with respect to the diaphragm issug @ro alleging violation of SMAQMD

rules. SMAQMD’s suit asks for at least $5 millimnpenalties for the violations claimed in its gdiction.

In July 2010, the Company entered into a tollingeagnent with the South Coast Air Quality Managenizistrict (‘SCAQMD”) and began discussions
with that agency about the circumstances leadingeaetrofit in its jurisdiction and the resolutiof the agency’s concerns. Those discussionaatid
result in agreement and in December 2010, SCAQNHA fa civil complaint against the Company in Logyales Superior Court. The complaint alleges
violations of California statutes and regulatiosigilar to the complaint filed by CARB, as well@slation of SCAQMD rules, and seeks penaltiestof a
least $12.5 million. The SCAQMD complaint does ali¢ge an intentional violation of any statutderwr regulation.

The Company believes that there is no reasonakis fxr the amount of penalties claimed in the SMA®and SCAQMD suits. The Company has
answered the SMAQMD and SCAQMD complaints, as welthe CARB complaint, denying liability and asseyaffirmative defenses.

Neither CARF's filing of its suit nor the air district suits ta any effect on CARB's certification of the CompanEVR System or any other products of
the Company or its subsidiaries, and so do notfare with continuing sales. CARB has never défiedtthe Company’s EVR System and does not
propose to do so now.

The Company remains willing to discuss these ngmtad work toward resolving them. The Company oapredict the ultimate outcome of
discussions to resolve these matters or any prawgedith respect to them. Penalties awardedén@ARB or any air district proceedings or payments
resulting from a settlement of these matters, déipgnon the amount, could have a material effedhenCompany’s results of operations.

The Company acquired the Healy product line in &ajper 2006 when it purchased Healy Systems, Ircpréviously reported, the Company withheld
a portion of the purchase price and the earn-opnpats otherwise due to James Healy (the prindguaier owner of Healy Systems) against its claim
for indemnification with respect to the diaphragrattar. Mr. Healy sued the Company in U.S. Dist@ourt in New Hampshire, claiming these

funds. In December 2010, the Court ruled, aftat,tthat the Company was not entitled to indeneaifion for the diaphragm matter. The Court also
ruled that Mr. Healy is entitled to prejudgmentirst on certain of the withheld funds.

Without prejudicing the Company'’s right to appésa Court’s rulings (which have not yet been reduogddgment), the Company released the funds
withheld on account of the diaphragm matter in 3an@011, and in December 2010 recognized a chadr§&.2 million reflecting attorneys’ fees for
Mr. Healy, on which the Court has not yet ruled] anejudgment interest. The Company is discussitiy Mr. Healy a final resolution of their disput:
including Mr. Healy’s indemnification obligationsitiv respect to a separate patent matter, and ttiephave agreed to defer further action in theeca
for a time to allow those discussions to proceed.
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On July 31, 2009, Sta-Rite Industries, LLC and Rieninc. filed an action against the Company ia thS. District Court for the Northern District of
Ohio, alleging breach of the parties’ 2004 Setti@nAgreement and tortious interference with corittesed on the Company's pricing of submersible
electric products and seeking damages in excessMmmillion for each claimant. The Company hasiefiability, is defending the case vigorously,

and has filed a counterclaim alleging Sta-Rite Badtair's breach of the same Settlement Agreenizistovery has concluded and each side has filed a
motion for summary judgment, seeking dismissahefdther's claims. Those motions are currentlylpgn The Company cannot predict the ultimate
outcome of this litigation, and any settlement djudication of this matter, depending on the ampoaotild have a material effect on the Company’s
results of operations.

The Company is defending various other claims agdllactions, including environmental matters, Wwhiave arisen in the ordinary course of business.
In the opinion of management, based on current kedye of the facts and after discussion with colisese claims and legal actions can be
successfully defended or resolved without a mdtadeaerse effect on the Company’s financial positi@sults of operations, and net cash flows.

Total rent expense charged to operations for operégases including contingent rentals was $718anj $7.6 million, and $8.3 million for 2010, 200
and 2008, respectively.

The future minimum rental payments for non-candelalperating leases as of January 1, 2011 ardlaw/$o

(In millions)
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Future minimum rental paymer $6.€ $4.4 $3.¢ $1.C $1.C

Rental commitments subsequent to 2015 are notfisigni by year, but aggregated are $2.7 milliototal.
At January 1, 2011, the Company had $2.2 millionarhmitments primarily for the purchase of machyreend equipment, and building expansions.

Below is a table that shows the activity in the neaty accrual accounts:

(In millions)

2010 2009
Beginning balanc $8.8 $9.3
Accruals related to product warrant 7.8 9.8
Reductions for payments ma (7.2) (10.3)
Ending balance $9.4 $8.8

19. RESTRUCTURING

As a follow up to Phase 3 of the Global ManufactgrRealignment Program, the Company announcedkitstp close its Siloam Springs, Arkansas
manufacturing facility. The Company has incurree-fax restructuring costs related to the factitysing including severance expenses, pension
charges, and asset write-off costs of $3.5 millierof January 1, 2011. While the closure was anhiatly complete as of the end of the fourth gerart
2010, there are assets held for sale of $2.3 mithat may incur future write-offs if they are rsatid as anticipated.

Assets held for sale as of yeamd include the Siloam Springs, Arkansas manufaxgdacility and certain production assets at fhwlity. In June 201(
management committed to a formal plan to sell tlesets, reduced the carrying amount of the as#tsir estimated fair value less costs to sall an
suspended depreciation on the assets, all in amcoedwith FASB ASC Topic 360-Froperty, Plant and EquipmentThe impairment of the
manufacturing facility and production assets reslih a restructuring expense of $2.4 million ie #econd quarter of 2010 and a remaining fair value
estimated at $2.3 million. If the assets are ot by the end of the second quarter of 2011 (@me, year from the initial plan for sale), the Camyp will
evaluate the assets further for financial impairtnen
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Costs incurred in the twelve months ended Janug2911, included in the “Restructuring expenseas bf the income statement, are as follows:

(In millions) Twelve Months Ended January 1, 2(

Water Fueling Other Total
Severance and other employee assistance $0.€ $- $0.¢ $1.7
Equipment relocation 0.2 - - 0.2
Asset impairmen 2.4 - - 2.4
Pension curtailment 1.C - - 1.C
Total $4.4 $- $0.¢ $5.2

Restructuring expenses of $6.2 million were inadiire2009 primarily for the Water Systems segmeatignment. As of January 1, 2011 and Janus
2010, there was $0.2 million and $0.3 million istrecturing reserves, primarily for severance.

20. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITID)
Unaudited quarterly financial information for 20406d 2009, from continuing operations, is as follows

(In millions, except per share amour
Net Income
Attributable to
Franklin Electric Basic Earnings Per ShareDiluted Earnings Per

Net Sales Gross Profit Net Income Co., Inc. (@) Share
2010
1st Quarte $160.C $50.4 $7.4 $7.2 $0.31 $0.31
2nd Quarte 190.4 64.5 11.3 11.0 0.47 0.47
3rd Quartel 188.4 59.3 12.5 12.2 0.53 0.52
4th Quarter 175.0 56.1 8.8 8.6 0.37 0.36
$713.8 $230.2 $40.0 $39.0 $1.68 $1.66
2009
1st Quarte $149.8 $43.2 $4.1 $3.8 $0.17 $0.17
2nd Quarte 165.3 49.2 6.0 5.8 0.25 0.25
3rd Quartel 166.0 50.2 8.8 8.6 0.37 0.37
4th Quarter 144.9 45.2 7.8 7.8 0.33 0.33
$626.C $187.€ $26.7 $26.0 $1.13 $1.12

(a) Earnings per common share amounts are commdegdendently for each of the quarters presentdatrefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings per
share may not equal the annual earnings per share.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareowners and Directors, Franklin Ele@oc, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and subsies (the "Company") as of January 1, 2011 and
January 2, 2010, and the related consolidatednseates of income, equity and comprehensive incooes)| and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended January 1, 2011. These finaneigdments are the responsibility of the Compangsagement. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based oraodits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBo(United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabnassurance about whether the financial statisnaea free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgadhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstiaiements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estisatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfisancial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis foopiurion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statatag@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinarficial position of Franklin Electric Co., Inc.dan
subsidiaries as of January 1, 2011 and Janua§1®, 2nd the results of their operations and ttesh flows for each of the three years in the gerio
ended January 1, 2011, in conformity with accounprinciples generally accepted in the United StafeAmerica.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@/nited States), the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of January @12, based on the criteria establishethiernal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred®ommission, and our report dated March 2, 26%firessed an unqualified opinion on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting

/sIDELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

Chicago, lllinois
March 2, 2011
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by this refiie “Evaluation Date”), the Company carried oueaaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company’s management, inclgdhie Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the @any’s Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the@my'’s disclosure controls and procedures purdouaikxchange Act Rule 13a-15. Based upon that
evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officeddhe Company’s Chief Financial Officer concludieat, as of the Evaluation Date, the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

There have been no changes in the Company’s ihteon#rol over financial reporting identified in moection with the evaluation required by Rules 13a-
15 under the Exchange Act during the last fiscalrtgr that have materially affected, or are realslyrikely to materially affect the Company’s intex
control over financial reporting.

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORNG

System of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taming an adequate system of internal control éwancial reporting of the Company. This system
is designed to provide reasonable assurance regdti reliability of financial reporting and theeparation of financial statements for externajppse:
in accordance with accounting principles generatigepted in the United States of America.

The Company’s internal control over financial repay includes those policies and procedures thausitain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseo€tmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepiamtion of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting principles, ant tha
receipts and expenditures of the Company are breadg only in accordance with authorizations of ngangent and directors of the Company; (iii)
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of the Company'’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting can provide only reaable assurance with respect to financial statement
preparation and may not prevent or detect misstésnFurther, because of changes in conditiofectefeness of internal controls over financial
reporting may vary over time.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effentise of the system of internal control over finahgeporting based on the frameworKliternal
Control-Integrated Frameworghe “Framework”) issued by the Committee of SpeimgpOrganizations of the Tread way Commission (OQS
Management did not include in the scope of thiduatan PetroTechnik Limited, which was acquiredidg 2010 and whose financial statements
constitute 3.2 percent of net assets, 3.3 perddntal assets, 1.4 percent of revenues, and X@&peof net income attributable to Franklin Elec€o.,
Inc. of the consolidated financial statement amsastof and for the year ended January 1, 201%edan its evaluation, management concluded that
the Company'’s system of internal control over fitiahreporting was effective as of January 1, 2011.

Our independent registered accounting firm hasdsun audit report on the effectiveness of the Goms internal control over financial reporting. T
report appears on page 61.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareowners and Directors, Franklin Ele@oc, Inc.:

We have audited the internal control over finanagglorting of Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and subiaries (the "Company") as of January 1, 2011 based
on criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission.
As described in Management’s Report on Internalt@biover Financial Reporting, management exclufdech its assessment the internal control over
financial reporting at PetroTechnik Limited, whislas acquired September 3, 2010 and whose finasteiments constitute 3.2 percent of net assets,
3.3 percent of total assets, 1.4 percent of revgrarel 1.3 percent of net income attributable smKlin Electric Co., Inc. of the consolidated fic#i
statement amounts as of and for the year ende@&dahu2011. Accordingly, our audit did not inctuthe internal control over financial reporting at
PetroTechnik Limited. The Company's managemergspansible for these financial statements, for taaiing effective internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectgsrof internal control over financial reporting;luded in the Management’s Report on Internal @dnt
over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility isetxpress an opinion on the Company's internal cbatrer financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8dé@nited States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabnassurance about whether effective internatabaver financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtainingiatgierstanding of internal control over financiglogting, assessing the risk that a material weaknes
exists, testing and evaluating the design and tipgraffectiveness of internal control based onabksessed risk, and performing such other procedure
as we considered necessary in the circumstancebeléwe that our audit provides a reasonable asisur opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supemnvidi the company's principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performisignilar functions, and effected by the compangart of directors, management, and other personnel
to provide reasonable assurance regarding théiléleof financial reporting and the preparatiohfimancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples A company's internal control over financigborting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records thaeasonable detail, accurately and fairly ieftbe transactions and dispositions of the asdetse
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thatactions are recorded as necessary to permit pitegraof financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, andrinagipts and expenditures of the company are beade only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and ()ige reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets thdtldeve a material effect on the financial statetsie

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoinover financial reporting, including the pogiti of collusion or improper management overriafe
controls, material misstatements due to erroraumdrmay not be prevented or detected on a timedigbAlso, projections of any evaluation of the
effectiveness of the internal control over finahegporting to future periods are subject to thsi that the controls may become inadequate beaduse
changes in conditions, or that the degree of caanpé with the policies or procedures may detemorat

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fic&l reporting as of January 1, 2011, based on the
criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Frameworésued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule asdofoa the year ended January 1, 2011 of the Coynpad our report dated March 2, 2011 expressed
an unqualified opinion on those financial stateraemtd financial statement schedule.

/s/IDELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

Chicago, lllinois
March 2, 2011
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART 11l

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORETGOVERNANCE

The information concerning directors and directominees required by this Item 10 is set forth i @ompany's Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 6, 20htler the headings of "ELECTION OF DIRECTORS" aidFORMATION CONCERNING
NOMINEES AND CONTINUING DIRECTORS," and is incorpied herein by referenc

The information concerning executive officers regdiby this Item 10 is contained in Part | of thegm 10-K under the heading of "EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT," and is incorporatedeite by reference.

The information concerning Regulation S-K, Item 4ld&closures of delinquent Form 3, 4 or 5 filerguieed by this Item 10 is set forth in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meetin@lb&reholders to be held on May 6, 2011, undehéiaeling of “SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL
OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE,” and is incorpomteerein by reference.

The information concerning the procedures for dhalders to recommend nominees to the Company'slbafagirectors, the Audit Committee of the
board of directors, and the Company’s code of cohdnd ethics required by this Item 10 is set fantthe Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 6, 20ideu the heading “INFORMATION ABOUT THE BOARD ANO'BE COMMITTEES,” and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is set fortittie Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meedf Shareholders to be held on May 6, 2011,
under the headings of “INFORMATION ABOUT THE BOAREND ITS COMMITTEES,” “MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION AND
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT,” “COMPENSATION, DISESSION AND ANALYSIS,” “SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE,”
“GRANT OF PLAN BASED AWARDS TABLE,” “OUTSTANDING EQJITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END TABLE,” “OPTION
EXCERCISES AND STOCK VESTED TABLE,” “PENSION BENEFS TABLE,” “NON-QUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION,”
“POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN ONTROL OF THE COMPANY,” and “DIRECTOR COMPENSATIONand
is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIALWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTER
The information required by Item 12 is set forthtie Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meedf Shareholders to be held on May 6, 2011,
under the headings of "SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERNBENEFICIAL OWNERS,” “SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGHEENT" and
“SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY Q@PENSATION PLANS,” and is incorporated herein bjerence.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANIDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by Item 13 is set fortittie Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Mgedf Shareholders to be held on May 6, 2011,
under the heading “INFORMATION ABOUT THE BOARD ANO'S COMMITTEES,” and is incorporated herein by refece.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is set forthiie Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Megtf Shareholders to be held on May 6, 2011,
under the heading “PROPOSAL 2: RATIFICATION OF TAEPOINTMENT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP AS THE COMPAN'®
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FORHE 2011 FISCAL YEAR,” and is incorporated hereinrejerence.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Form 10-K Annual Report

(page)
(a) 1. Financial Statemer- Franklin Electric Co., Inc
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourf&inm 59
Consolidated Statements of Income for the threesyeaded January 1, 20 27
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 1, 2@ January 2, 201 28-29
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the theaes ended January 1, 2( 30-31
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the threesyeaded January 1, 20 32-33
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements(inclydjmarterly financial date 34-58
2. Financial Statement Schedu- Franklin Electric Co., Inc
II. Valuation and Qualifying Account 63

Schedules other than those listed above are oniidtdtie reason that they are not required or atepplicable, or the required information is dised
elsewhere in the financial statements and relatéeisn

3. Exhibits
See the Exhibit Index located on pages 66-69. Mamagt Contract, Compensatory Plan, or Arrangensesigmoted by an asterisk (*).

SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years 2010, 2009, and 2008

(In millions)
Additions
Balance at charged to
beginning of costs and Balance at en
Description period expense: Deductions (A Other (B) of period
Allowance for doubtful account
2010 $ 2t % 0.2 $ 01 $ 01 $ 28
2009 $ 21 % 02 $ 02 $ 02 $ 2.E
2008 $ 2€ $ 02 $ 0. $ 0C $ 2.1

NOTES:

(A) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoes
(B) Allowance for doubtful accounts related to accouatsivable of acquired companies at date of aitopris
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareowners and Directors, Franklin Ele@oc, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statesngiFranklin Electric Co., Inc. and subsidiarfgee "Company") as of January 1, 2011 and January
2, 2010, and for each of the three years in thmgended January 1, 2011, and the Company's aiteomtrol over financial reporting as of Januayy 1
2011, and have issued our reports thereon datediV2ar2011; such reports are included elsewhett@isrorm 10-K. Our audits also included the
consolidated financial statement schedule of the@my listed in Item 15. The consolidated finanstatement schedule is the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is toesgan opinion based on our audits. In our opirgooh consolidated financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic consddidifinancial statements taken as a whole, presainig in all material respects, the informaticet s

forth therein.

/sIDELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

Chicago, lllinois
March 2, 2011
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report to be signedson it
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

Franklin Electric Co., Inc

/s/ R. SCOTT TRUMBULL
R. Scott Trumbul
Chairman of the Board and Ch
Date: March 2, 201 Executive Officel

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptine following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities indicated on Marc2011.

/s/ R. SCOTT TRUMBULL Chairman of the Board and Chief

R. Scott Trumbul Executive Officer (Principe
Executive Officer,

/s/ JOHN J. HAINES Vice President, Chief

John J. Haine Financial Officer and Secreta
(Principal Financial and Accountir
Officer)

/s/ JEROME D. BRADY
Jerome D. Brad Director

/s/ DAVID T. BROWN
David T. Brown Director

/s/ DAVID A. ROBERTS
David A. Roberts Director

/sl THOMAS R. VERHAGE
Thomas R. VerHag Director

s/ DAVID M. WATHEN
David M. Wather Director

/sl THOMAS L. YOUNG
Thomas L. Youn¢ Director
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FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC.
EXHIBIT INDEX TO THE ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 1, 2011
Exhibit
Number Description
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporationmainklin Electric Co., Inc. (incorporated by refeterto the Company's Form 8-K
3.1 filed on May 3, 2007
By-Laws of Franklin Electric Co., Inc. as amendaty 25, 2008 (incorporated by reference to ExHibilt of the Company’s Form 8-K
3.2 filed on July 29, 2008
Rights Agreement, dated as of October 15, 199@naybetween Franklin Electric Co., Inc. and llim&tock Transfer Company, as
Rights Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement@m8-A dated October 19, 1999,
4.1 File No. 00(-00362).
First Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as afeer 1, 2006, between Franklin Electric Co., &md LaSalle Bank National
4.2 Association (incorporated by reference to Exhikit df the Company's Forn-A/A filed on December 8, 200t
Second Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated aslpfld, 2007, between Franklin Electric Co., Inedd aSalle Bank National
4.2 Association (incorporated by reference to Exhiblt df the Compar’s Form &K filed on July 16, 2007
Third Amendment to Rights Agreement between Fiartlectric Co., Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, NatbAssociation, as Rights
4.4 Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4ref Compan’'s Form +A/A filed on September 23, 200
Shareholder’'s Agreement, dated as of July 11, 208iveen Franklin Electric Co., Inc., and SeleatiBgGroup, Inc. and Select
4.5 Offshore Advisors, LLC (incorporated by referenadEhibit 4.2 of the Compar’s Form K filed on July 16, 2007
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Stock Option Plan (imgorated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Conymform 10-K for the fiscal year
10.1 ended January 3, 2004
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Stock Plan (incorpoxhtey reference to the Company’s 2005 Proxy Statéfioethe Annual Meeting held
10.2 on April 29, 2005, and included as Exhibit A to Pexy Statement)
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Amended and RestataztsPlan (incorporated by reference to the Commf909 Proxy Statement for the
10.2 Annual Meeting held on April 24, 2009, and includedExhibit A to the Proxy Statemen
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Non-employee DirectoBgferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by refsr¢o Exhibit 10.1 of the
10.4 Compan’s Form 1-Q for the quarter ended on April 1, 200t
First Amendment to the Franklin Electric Co.,.INmnemployee Directors’ Deferred Compensation Eied February 19, 2010
10.£ (filed herewith)*
Amended and Restated Franklin Electric Co., Inoisite Restoration Plan (incorporated by referendexhibit 10.4 of the Company’s
10.€ Form 1(-K filed for the fiscal year ended January 3, 20C
Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Deferred CompensatidéanReffective December 12, 2008 (incorporated ligremce to Exhibit 10.2 of the
10.7 Compan’s Form &K filed on December 17, 2008
Employment Agreement dated December 32 2@@ween the Company and Scott Trumbull and antkade
February 18, 2009 and March 2, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit T0df the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded December 28,
2002; Exhibit 10.6
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10.€

10.¢

10.1¢

10.11

10.12

10.1:

10.1¢
10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2C

10.21

Employment Agreement dated December 3, 2002 betttvee@ompany and Scott Trumbull and amended onuaep 8, 2009 and
March 2, 2010 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBitl0 of the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscadiyended December 28, 2002;
Exhibit 10.6 of the Company’s Form 10-K for thecii$year ended January 3, 2009; and Exhibit 10tfieCompany’s Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended January 3, 201

Amended Employment Agreement dated December 2@ Béf@iveen the Company and Gregg C. Sengstack asadat on July 25,
2008 and February 20, 2009 (incorporated by referéa Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended December
28, 2008; Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Form 8-KedhJuly 23, 2005; and Exhibit 10.7 of the Comparyorm 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 3, 200!

Employment Agreement dated as of April 14, 2008veen the Company and John J. Haines and amendeéebonary 18, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of trem@®any’s Form 8-K dated April 7, 2008 and Exhilfit&8 of the Company’s Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 20C

Managing Director Service Contract dated AugugQD3 between Franklin Electric Europa GmbH and Réter-Christian Maske
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of @@mpan’s Form 1+K for the fiscal year ended January 1, 20C

Form of Confidentiality and Non-Compete Agreemeetileeen the Company and R. Scott Trumbull, Greg§ebgstack, Daniel J.
Crose, Robert J. Stone, Thomas J. Strupp, Delancdyavis and John J. Haines (incorporated by refexe¢o Exhibit 10.15 of the
Compan’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended January 1, 20C

Form of Employment Security Agreement between tbm@any and DeLancey W. Davis, Daniel J. Crose, Rabé&tone, and Thom
J. Strupp (incorporated by reference to ExhibitLldf.the Compar’s Form K filed on December 17, 2008

Executive Officer Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Paogi(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17haf Company’s Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended January 1, 20C

Long Term Bonus Program (incorporated by referégadeem 5.02 of the Compa’s Form K filed on March 5, 2009)

Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Management IncentivarP(incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to @@mpany’s Proxy Statement for
the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held April 301@)*

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement formNDirector Employees (incorporated by referencExbibit 10.1 of the
Compan’s Form 1-Q for the quarter ended April 2, 200t

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for&itor Employees (incorporated by reference to k0.2 of the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended April 2, 200¢

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Non-Diredonployees (incorporated by reference to ExhibieQ®f the Company’s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20(

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Director Bogpes (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@Pihe Company’s Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 20(

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Non-Emploi@ectors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit2Bof the Company’s Form
1C-K for the fiscal year ended December 30, 20(
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10.27

10.22

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.3(
21
23

31.1
31.z

32.1

32.2
99.1

101.INS

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement formNDirector Employees (incorporated by referencExbibit 10.2 of the
Compan’s Form 1-Q for the quarter ended April 4, 200¢

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for&itor Employees (incorporated by reference to k0.3 of the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended April 4, 200¢

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Non-Diredtonployees (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 the Company’s Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended April 4, 200¢

$120,000,000 Amended and Restated Credit Agreedatetl December 14, 2006, between the Company aidrgBn Chase, as
Administrative Agent (incorporated by referencdsdibit 2.04 of the Compar' s Form {-K filed on December 21, 200

Amendment No. 1 to the $120,000,000 Amended antbResCredit Agreement, dated February 26, 2008yden the Company and
JPMorgan Chase, as Administrative Agent (incoratdiy reference to Exhibit 10.20 of the Companyef10-K for the fiscal year
ended January 3, 200

Second Amended and Restated Note Purchase andeP3ivelf Agreement dated September 9, 2004 bettiee@ompany and the
Prudential Insurance Company of America and otfiecerporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of @@mpany’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended October 2, 20(

Amendment and PruShelf Renewal and Extension, dpeitl9, 2007, between the Company and Prudehtsirance Company of
America and others (incorporated by reference@cdbmpan’s Form &K filed on May 3, 2007

Amendment No. 2 to the Second Amended and RediiglPurchase and Private Shelf Agreement, datediBey 26, 2008, between
the Company and the Prudential Insurance Compaiynafrica and others (incorporated by referencextultit 10.23 of the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 2C

Amendment No. 3 to Second Amended and RestatedMNotdhase and Private Shelf Agreement, dated yI9@10 between the
Company and Prudential Insurance Company of Ameaichothers (incorporated by reference to Compdagisn 10-Q for the quarter
ended July, 3, 201(

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba—Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba—-Oxley Act of 200z

Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant 8 U.S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted Pursuant to Se&{6 of the Sarban&3xley Act
of 2002

Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant t8 .S.C. Section 1350 As Adopted Pursuant to Se&fi6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

Forwarc-Looking Statement

XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen

101.CAL
101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkb.
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkba:
* Management Contract, Compensatory Plan, or Areament

-68-







FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE
FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC.
NONEMPLOYEE DIRECTORS’ DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

WHEREAS , Franklin Electric Co., Inc. (the “Company”) maims the Franklin Electric Co., Inc. Nonemployeeredtors’ Deferrec
Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) for its nonemplogl@ectors; and

WHEREAS , the Company has reserved the right to amendltredhd now deems it appropriate to do so.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED , that the Plan is hereby amended, effective @ebfuary 19, 2010, by revising Section 2.1 o
Plan to read as follows:

2.1 Number of SharesSubject to adjustment as provided in Sectionh22in, the total number of shares of common
stock of the Company (“Common Stock”) available ikgsuance under the Plan shall be 100,000 sh&wsh shares of Common Stock
may be either authorized but unissued, reacquiredcombination thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this First Amendment has been duly executed dsi®fl9t" day of February, 2010.

FRANKLIN ELECTRIC CO., INC.

By:
John J. Haines
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Secretary

CH2\8370886.1






CERTIFICATIONS

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, R. Scott Trumbull, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Franklin Electric Co., Inc., for the year endiJanuary 1, 201

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#téde a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not mislgadth respect to the period covered
by this report

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations @adh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegus presented in this repo

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15+-15(f)) for the registrant and we hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahaporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assereegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princij

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registiadtsclosure controls and procedures and preséntais report our conclusions abi
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls awodguiures, as of end of the period covered by #gent based on such evaluation;
and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thadcurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fouytiarter in the case of an annual report) thanteaterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regist’ s internal control over financial reporting; @

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financial reporting,
to the registrar’s auditors and the audit committee of regis’s board of directors or persons performing sinfilactions:

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regi¥’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refimahcial information; ant




b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 2, 2011

/s/ R. Scott Trumbull

R. Scott Trumbull

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.










CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John J. Haines, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Franklin Electric Co., Inc., for the year endiJanuary 1, 201

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not mislgadth respect to the period covered
by this report

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theqgos presented in this repo

. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15+-15(f)) for the registrant and we hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under our

supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preggh

. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be designed

under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princij

. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registadtsclosure controls and procedures and presantad report our conclusions abi

the effectiveness of the disclosure controls awdguiures, as of end of the period covered by #gent based on such evaluation;
and

. Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsanternal control over financial reporting thadcurred during the registrant’s

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fouytiarter in the case of an annual report) thanteterially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regist’ s internal control over financial reporting; @

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financial reporting,

to the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of regis’s board of directors or persons performing sinfilactions:

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting which

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regi¥’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refimahcial information; ant




b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 2, 2011

[s/ John J. Haines

John J. Haines

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Seaneta
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.










CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TGB1U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECRIG06 OF
THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Franklire&tric Co., Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K ftwetyear ending January 1, 2011 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, R. Scott Trumbulh&@rman, Chief Executive Officer and President
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Bect350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 db#érbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSetction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 2, 2011

/s/ R. Scott Trumbull
R. Scott Trumbull
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.










CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO8U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECNIQ06 OF
THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Franklire&tric Co., Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K ftwetyear ending January 1, 2011 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission or#te hereof (the “Report”), |, John J. Haines, \ieesident, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Bect350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 db#érbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSetction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the

Company.

Date: March 2, 2011

/s/ John J. Haines
John J. Haines
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Seareta
Franklin Electric Co., Inc.










ADDITIONAL EXHIBITS

ForwardLooking Statements

Written and oral statements provided by the Comgeam time to time, including in the Company’s aahteport to shareholders and its annual report
on Form 10-K and other filings under the Securiigshange Act of 1934, may contain certain forwimaking information, such as statements abot
Company’s financial goals, acquisition strategfgmncial expectations including anticipated revenu expense levels, business prospects, market
positioning, product development, manufacturinglignment, capital expenditures, tax benefits afkases, and the effect of contingencies or change:
in accounting policies. Forward-looking statemeartstypically identified by words or phrases sastbelieve,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“estimate,” “may increase,” “may fluctuate,” “pldrfgoal,” “target,” “strategy,” and similar expreissis or future or conditional verbs such as “may,”
“will,” “should,” “would,” and “could.” While theCompany believes that the assumptions underlyioh garward-looking statements are reasonable
based on present conditions, forward-looking statmmade by the Company involve risks and unceigai and are not guarantees of future
performance. Actual results may differ materialign those in the Company’s written or oral forwérdking statements as a result of various factors,
including, but not limited to, the following:

« The Companys success in its ongoing evaluation and implemiemtatf its business strategies, especially its ssgdn managing the expe
and integration, valuation and other risks of ¢qusition strategy and divestiture

« Continued or increased competitive pressures ffedtesales volume, pricing and profitability.

« Increased competition due to industry consolidationew entrants into the Company’s existing market

« The recovery and future health of the U.S. andriistiéonal economies and other economic factorsdhattly or indirectly affect the dema
for the Companys products, including the effect of economic candi on housing starts in the United States antheravailability and tern

of financing.

« Increases in the cost of raw material, componeitser materials, transportation or other servicagcwvthe Company is unable to pass ¢
customers or which impact demand for the Com’s products

» The effects of and changes in, trade, monetaryfiaodl policies, laws and regulations and otheivéigs of governments, agencies and sin
organizations across the many countries and regidmere the Company manufacturers or sells its miduncluding trade restrictior
inflation, currency fluctuations, import and ottedrarges or taxes, nationalizations and unstablergavents

« The Company’s success in implementing its stratfgyoncentrating production in low cost locations.

« The Companys ability to anticipate changing customer requiretsefund and accomplish product innovation, imgr@vocesses, and attr
and retain capable staff in order to deal withéasing volume and complexity in its produ

« Difficulties or delays in the development, prodoati testing and marketing of products, includindgadure to ship new products wh
anticipated, failure of customers to accept thaselycts when planned, any defects in products failare of manufacturing economies
develop when planne

The costs and other effects of administrative | cricriminal proceedings, settlements and invesiims, claims, developments or assertions by or
against the Company, including those relating telliectual




« property rights and licenses, alleged defects aulpcts and non-compliance with governmental regriat

« The introduction of alternative products or goveemtal and regulatory activities that favor alteiveaimethods of serving the same functio
the Compan’s products, such as the extension of municipal vetgtems

« The effect of environmental legislation and regolabn the Company’s products and sales.
« Company’s success in reducing or controlling grointhelling, general and administrative expenses.
« The Company'’s ability to manage the life cycletsfgroducts, reduce product costs and other costinarease productivity.

« Events such as fires, floods, or other naturalstésa and weather conditions impacting the Comgsaalyility to produce products or the dem
for its products

« A prolonged disruption of scheduled deliveries fremppliers when alternative sources of raw materdl components are not available.

« Labor strikes or work stoppages by employees obeapany, its customers, suppliers, or freight i@ntbrs or other providers.

« The adoption of new, or changes in, accountingcpdiand practices.
Some of these and other risks and uncertaintigésiihg affect future results are discussed in metaitin “ltem 1A — Risk Factors,” “ltem 7A —
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk,” and Note 18, “Contingencies and Committa&imcluded in Item 8 of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K. All forward-looking statements indkd herein are based upon information presentlyjadble, and the Company assumes no obligation
to update any forward-looking statements.







